Annual Report 2009

T.aw Debenture

A

AZ27 16/04/2010 4
COMPANIES HOUSE

FRIDAY

!w

L2
-
.
.
-
-
.
AL
- -
-
-
o

-
e
™ ——
—

Company Regstration No 30397
The Law Debenture Corporationpl¢




Group summary

From its ongins in 1889, Law Debenture has diversified to
become a group with a unique range of activities in the
financial and professional services sectors. The group divides
into two distinct complementary areas of business.

investment trust
We are a global imvestment trust, isted on
the London Stock Exchange

Our portfolio of investments is managed
by Henderscn Global Investors Limited
under a contract terminable by either side
on 12 months' notice

Our objective 1s to achieve long term capital
growth n real terms and steadly increasing
income The aim 1s to achieve a higher rate
of total return than the FTSE All-Share Index
through investing in a portfoho dversified
both geographically and by industry

www lawdeb com

Independent fiduciary services

We are a leading prownder of independent
fiduciary services Qur achivibies are
corporate trusts, freasury management and
structured finance admimistration, pension
trusts, corpaorate services {including agent
for service of process} and whistle blowing
services We have offices in London,
Sunderland, New York, Delaware,

Hong Kong, the Channel Islands and

the Cayman Islands

Companies, agencies, organisatons and
indnaduals throughout the world rely upon
Law Debenture to carry out its duties with
the independence and professionalism upon
which its reputation 1s built

The Law Debenture Corporation pl ¢
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10 year record

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Net assets (£m) 2876 2946 2603 1996 2417 2725 3396 3926 4071 2664 3424
Revenue return’ (pence) 770 785 705 633 691 857 1005 1219 1423 1558 1302
Capital return' (pence} 3120 508 (2975) (5012) 3731 2585 5467 4094 937 (12059 6277
Total' lpence) 3890 1293 (2270} (4379 4422 3442 6472 5313 2360 (10501) 7579

Revenue return’ (pence}
lnvestment trust 557 545 407 410 451 506 573 707 860 1023 733
Independﬁni_flgy_c_la_r_y_se_r\_n_c_es ) 2}':% 240 298 223 240 351 432 512 563 535 569
770 785 705 633 691 857 1005 1219 1423 1558 1302

Disidends! {pence) 660 6380 690 690 690 755 905 1050 1200 1220 1220
NAV! (pence}

(after proposed final dnidend) 2465 2526 2229 1705 2019 2281 2840 3282 3396 2192 2840
Share price! (pence) 2336 2396 2335 1925 22175 2325 28875 34900 3545 2235 2845
Premium/{discount) (%) (52 (1) 47 129 98 19 17 63 44 20 02
Market capitalisation (£m} 2726 2794 2727 2253 2600 2732 3397 4108 4174 2638 3359
Cost of running nvestment trust?

(% of average portiolio value) 046 047 053 056 055 052 051 c49 049 048 054

! Pence per share as restated following a five for one share spht in August 2002
% Cost of runrung investment trust n 2008 and 2009 excludes VAT refunds related to prior years

The infarmation in respect of 2003-2009, 15 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards The informabon i respect
of 1999-2002 1s in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accountng Principles
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Highhights
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
pence pence
Share pnce 284 50 22350
NAV per share after proposed final dwidend 283 95 21920
Revenue return per share
- Investment trust 733 1023
- Independent fiduciary services 569 535
Group revenue return per share 1302 1558
Caprtal return per share 6277 (120 59}
Dwvidends per share N 12 20 12 20
Performance
2009 2008
______ % . B %
Share price total return’ 344 (34 5)
NAY total return! 378 (327}
FTSE All-Share Index total return 301 (29 9)

! Source AIC, including remvestmert of dvidends

www [awdeb com
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4 Long term performance

5 yea: 10 year;
NAV total refumn’ 514 680
FTSE Actuaries AllShare Index total return' 368 177
Share price total return' 46 9 715
Change in retall price index! 119 269
Annval revenue earnings growth 87 54
Annual diwdend growth 101 63
Annual RPI change 23 24

! Source AIC

The performance data contained above has been compiled in accordance with AIC recommendations

Total returns assume the reinvestment of dwidends

The Law Debenture Corporation pl ¢
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Douglas McDougall oBe

Charman

Charrman of The Independent Investment Trust plc,
The European Investment Trust plc and Scotbsh
Investment Trust plc and a director of The Monks
Investment Trust plc, Pactfic Honizon Investment
Trust plc and Herald Investment Trust plc Former
joint senior partner of Baillle Gifford & Co, investment
managers, and former chairman of IMRO, of the
Association of Investment Trust Companies and of
the Fund Managers' Association Jomned the board in
1998, becoming charman in 2000 Chairman of the
remuneration and nomination committees, a member
of the audit commuttee and chairman of Law
Debenture Trust Company of New York In¢

Caroline Banszky

Managing drector

Appointed to the board in January 2002 Former
chief operating officer of SVB Holdings PLC (now
calted Novae plc), a Lloyd's listed integrated vehicle,
and former finance director of N M Rothschild &
Sons Limited

Armel Cates

Non-executive director

A former partner of Ciifford Chance and appointed
to the board in February 2001 Wide experence of
camtal markets transactions including medium term
note programmes, securitrsations and repackagings
Director of Fatburen Investment BV and of
Charterhouse+n-Southwark Trustee Company

A member of the remuneration, nomination and audit
committees and chairman of the LDC Trust
Management Limited board Senior non-executive
director

Investment manager

James Henderson

Joned Henderson Global Investors in 1983 and has
been an investment trust portfolic manager since
1990, managing Lowland Investment Company plc
since then and Henderson Oppartunities Trust plc
since lanuary 2006 He first became involved in the
management of Law Debenture's portfolio in 1994
and took over sole management of the portfolio in
June 2003

www lawdeb com
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John Kay

Non-executive director

Appointed to the board in September 2004
Business economst, writer and broadcaster
Visiting Professor at the London School of
Economics Founded London Econormics, Britain's
largest independent economic consuttancy
Director of SYM UK Active Fund plc, Value and
Income Trust ple, Scottish Morigage nvestment
Trust plc and Clear Capital, an equity research
boubque

He writes a weekly column for the Financial Times
Member of the audit, remuneration and namination
committeas and charman of L O Pension Plan
Trustee Limited

Christopher Smuth

Non-executive director

Appomted to the board on 1 March 2009 Former
Managing Director, Corporate Finance of JP Morgan
Cazenove Over 30 years expenence in corporate
finance and equity capital markets He has been a
member of The London Stock Exchange and UKLA
Practiboner Committees and 15 a member of the
Panel on Takeovers and Mergers Chairman of the
audit committee and a member of the remuneration
and nommation committees, and a director of LDC
Trust Management Limited
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Chairman’s statement

Performance

Our net asset value total return for the year to 31 Decemnber
2009 was 37 8%, compared to a total return of 30 1% for the
FTSE Actuanes AlkShare Index

Our gross income declined over the year by 0 8% from £47 4m
to £47 Om Profit (revenue) attnbutable to shareholders was
£15 3m, a reduction of 16 4% over the previous year, as a
result of a 28 4% fall in the mvestment trust and a 6 5%
increase In independent fiducrary services

Dividend

The board 1s recommending a final dwidend of 8 Op per ordinary
share (2008 8 Op), which together wath the interm diwdend of
4 2p {2008 4 2p) gives a total dwidend of 12 2p (2008

12 2p) The dwidend has been maintaned despite a difficull
penod during which many companies have had to reduce
dwidends The final dndend will be paid, subject to shargholder
approval, on 1 April 2010 to holders on the register at the
record date of 5 March 2010 The Cerporation's policy
continues to be to seek growth in both capital and income

Investment trust

The year saw a marked upturn in equity market share prices,
although revenues were lower than forecast as companies
chose to reduce dwvidends or cut thern altogether We
concentrated on seeking companies that had managed their
costs prudently during the recession, believing that these
companies would be well placed to benefit from a return to
economic growth Gearing remained steady at around 8-10%
through the year, reflecting the board’s belef that there were
stilf sufficient uncertanties about future prospects to rute out
any increase Surplus cash was invested in mnvestment grade
short-dated corporate bonds, which generated much better
returns than were available from bank deposits

The Far East investment was restructured as funds were
moved out of the Henderson Asia Pacific OEIC, which had
underperformed for some time, into other portfolio based
nvestments

Looking forward, we beheve that the prospects for UK dvidends
have improved, and that it 1s nght to maintain a modest level of
gearing While opinions vary as to how long the recent rally will
last, the portfolio 1s well positioned to take advantage should it
continue to do so, while being sufficiently defensive to weather
further shocks that may come as the world emerges from
recession

The Law Debenture Corporabon pi ¢

Independent fiduciary services

Independent fiduciary services profit before tax rose by 3 8%
Assisted by a one-off gain of £694,000 as a result of changes
made to the pension scheme duning the year, performance was
generally good in what was an extremely difficult year for the
capttal markets The managing director’s review discusses this
in more detall - see pages 14 and 15 In July 2009, we took
the difficult step of reducing head count to manage the cost
base more efficiently This followed our decision earlier in the
year to re-shape the pension arrangements for employees,
which has already brought benefits for shareholders as
described at note 23 2010 looks like being another difficult
year so a repeat of 2009 revenues would be a creditable
achievement We continue to seek new opportunities to grow,
both organically and by way of acquisibion, should surtable
opportunities anse to acquire businesses that would
complement Law Debenture's exishng businesses

Board

Following Chnistopher Smith's appointment to the board, and
reflecting his corporate finance expertise, he was appointed as
charman of the audit commitiee in succession to John Kay
who took on the charr of Law Debenture’s pension plan board

Staff
The independent fiduciary services businesses are run by

professional, experienced and committed people, whom
| should like to thank for their hard work during the year

Douglas McDougall

www lawdeb com




Review

It was unclear to nvestors at the start of 2009 how severe or
fong the recession would turn out to be The cnsis in the
banlung sector required massive bailouts from authorities and
pohcy makers, but the fultblown consequences of the crisis
were uncertain Credit avalability for borrowers was, at best,
challenging and, for many, simply unavailable As a result, many
commentators feared that any economic recovery would be
weak, something starkly reflected in the fall in share prices
However, concerns proved unduly pessimistic as a combination
of emerging markets growth and government spending
shimulated end demand so that, by year end, the global
economy was agamn growing in general, the corporate sector,
with the exception of a large number of financials, went into the
downturn in a sound position Generally speaking, corporate
debt was at manageable levels and companies were behaving in
an efficient, disciphned manner This allowed firms to attack the
problem of falling sales by reducing costs and generating cash
This meant that, when sales stabilised, the overall outtook for
profits appeared considerably better than expected The result
was a powerful rebound in share prices from the lows of the
first quarter of the year

Lessons from the financial crisis are stil being digested Some
are obvious, for example that ‘acceptable’ levels of borrowing,
both at an mdividual consumer and corporate level, will have to
be lower n future There were numerous capital raisings by
companies during the year and the ‘overborrowed’ cut therr
divdends to preserve cash Corporate debt fell markedly during
the year on demands for more conservative balance sheets
That said, the consequences of the ¢nsis are less clear in other
areas The banking system was the reason for the cnsis and its
future shape 15 being hotly debated, but what this will mean for
its future structure 1s unclear

Investment approach

Our investment strategy has been to focus on companies that
have the discipline to react to the difficult economic climate, but
also those with credible plans in place to take advantage of the
return of economic growth In sector terms, this means we are
posihoned with a large exposure t0 good quality industrial
companies

The overseas stocks in the portfolio bring opportunizes for
profitable investments that cannot be found in the UK The
strongest performing area dunng the year was the Far East, the
exposure to this area being spread across four different funds
The worst performing area was Japan, which had been the best
performing region the previous year Qur US exposure 15
predommantly focussed on major exporting capital goods
companies, these are leaders in ther fields and should benefit

www lawdeb com
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from the recovery in the globat industnal economy The
European stocks comprise a diversified list of long-term growth
companies that should be able to sustain profits growth despite
the substantial appreciation of the euro

Our judgment to participate n certain rights 1ssues proved
correct Capital raisings, where new shares were issued, were
effected at attractive levels for the new money coming In We
put new money into GKN, Land Securities and HSBC, among
others They are currently comfortably trading above the nghts
prices In addition, we underwrote a significant number of nghts
1ssues and it was a worthwhile exercise, producing £327,000
of income

Qver the year we sold £4 3 milion more of equities than we
purchased This, combined with the nse in asset value, meant
that geaning to equities fell from 12 3% to 7 2% The overall
level of gearing, however, hardly moved as we made £15 1
milhon of purchases in investment grade, short-dated corporate
bonds, which added capital value as welt as improving the
revenue earned

Our investment disciplines of predominantly focusing on value
and medium-term diwdend prospects have not altered during
the year

Outlook

Macroeconomic data shows that the global economy I1s growing
again The mpetus for this came mtially from fast-developing
economies, particularly China, but now the US 15 also showing
positive growth This 1s being achieved at a ime when wage
costs in the developed world are subdued, which means that
nflationary pressures are unlikely to be an issue n the short
term It follows that interest rates should not need to be
dramatically increased However, the wider consequences of
the financial turmodt have yet to work therr way through the
global system Current levels of government expenditure are
unsustainable, and economic predictions need to be treated
with caution

Fortunately, equity valuations are not demanding given that
there i1s a strong recovery underway in profits Many of the
companies held in the portfolio will prove the quality of therr
businesses as they produce good results, despite the uneasy
economic backdrop The portfolio 1s reasonably geared with
investments in companies that should produce sound dmdend
and earnings growth

James Henderson
Henderson Global Investors Limited
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8 Top 20 equity holdings by value

2009 2008
Value % of % of
Rank Company £000 portfelio pertfolio Rank
1 BP 13,200 354 4 37 1
2  Royal Dutch Shell 12,218 32e 4,03 2
3 HSBC 12,050 323 275 4
4  GlaxoSmithKhne 10,552 283 347 3
5 Briysh Amencan Tobacco 7,056 189 249 5
5 Senior 6,995 187 128 13
7 Hill & Smuth 5,899 158 104 20
8  Vodafone 5,467 147 160 8
9  Tesco 5,124 137 149 10
10 GKN 4,758 128 g6l 52
11 Diageo 4,657 125 142 1
12 impenal Tobacco 4,397 118 - -
13  Applied Materials (USA} 4,313 116 122 16
14 Amin 4,304 115 160 7
15 Rolls Royce 4,108 110 109 17
16 Meggtt 4,095 110 087 28
17 Bellway 4,058 109 130 12
18  Schlumberger (USA) 4,031 108 051 70
19 Morgan Crucible 3,991 107 089 26
20 BHP Biliton 3,990 107 - -
3359

The top 20 equity holdings by value at 31 December 2008 accounted for 37% of the investment portfolio

Other significant holdings by value

2009 2008
Value % of % of
Rank Company £000 portfolio portfalio Rank
1 Henderson Asia Pacific Capital Growth (Pacific)* 10,337 277 643 1
2 Henderson Japan Capital Growth (Japan)® 10,049 269 382 2
3 Ballie Gifford Pactfic* 7,959 213 - -
4  Furst State Asia Pacific* 6,752 1.81 - -
5  Natonal Gnd 6 125% 15/04/14 5,683 152 - -
6 Impenal Tobacco Fnance 6 875% 13/06/12 4677 125 - -
7 Scottish Onental Smaller Company Trust 4,080 109 - -
13 26

" Open ended investment compantes
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Changes in geographical distribution 9

Valuation Valuation

31 December Costs Sales Appreciatiory 31 December

2008 Purchases of acquistion proceeds {depreciation) 2009

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

United Kingdom 202,146 55,943 (175} (45,396} 54,016 266,534
North Amenca 10,184 4,343 {5} {593) 4,468 18,397
Europe 40,434 8,990 (11} {12,378) 6,082 43,117
Japan 17,260 796 {1} {913) (1,252} 15,890
Other Pacific 18,542 12,164 (14) (12,195) 10,631 29,128
288,566 82,236 (206} (71,475} 73,945 373,066
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10 Classification of investments

based on market values at 31 December 2009

United North Other
Kingdom America Europe Japan Pacific
% % % % %
Oll & gas
01l & gas producers 757 - 066 - -
Qi equpment & services 041 145 022 - -
748 145 _oss - -
Basic matertals
Chemicals 043 - 028 033
Forestry & paper 054 - - -
Mining 107 - - -
204 DBz 033 =
Industrials
Construction & matenals 082 - 058 - -
Aerospace & defence 479 - - - -
General industrials 170 - 020 - -
Electronic & electncal equipment 135 116 - - -
Industral engineering 32 114 030 - -
Industrial transportation 057 - 057 - -
Support services 212 - 085 - - .
14 56 230 250 - -
Consumer goods
Automobiles & parts 128 - 018 070 -
Beverages 125 - 018 - -
Food producers 165 - 076 - -
Household goods 255 - 059 - -
Leisure goods 009 - - - -
Tobacco 432 - 019 - -
1144 - 190 070 - o
Health care
Health care equipment & services 08¢ - 142 - -
Pharmaceuticals & biotechnology 442 - 121 - - .
522 - 263 - - )
Consumer services
Food & drug retallers 137 - 019 - -
General retalers 215 - 038 029 -
Media 326 039 - 024 -
Travel & leisure 136 019 - - o
814 058 057 053 - )
Telecommunications
Fixed line telecommunications 085 -
Motnle telecommunications 214 -
299 - - L - -
Utiities
Electricity 1 59 - 026 - -
Gas water & multiublibes 241 - - - -
400 - 026 - -
Financials
Banks 4 58 - 170 - -
Nonlife insurance 222 061 - - -
Life insurance/assurance 205 - 030 - -
Real estate investment & senaces 046 - - - -
Real estate mvestment trusts 34% - - - -
Financtal services 150 - 055 - -
Equity investment mstruments 077 - - 269 780 o
1507 061 255 269 780
Technology
Software & computer services
Total 2009 71 44 494 1157 425 7.80
Total 2008 7004 353 14 01 599 643

The above table excludes bank balances and short term deposits
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Total Totai

2009 2009 2008 2008
£000 % £000 %
30,681 823 29,426 1019
7,765 208 4,077 140
38,446 1031 33,503 1159
3,878 1.04 2,236 078
2,010 054 1,630 056
) 3,990 107 5,256 182
L 9,878 265 9,122 316
5,207 1.40 3,784 131
17,878 479 11,713 406
7,007 190 1,972 068
9,366 2.51 8,852 306
17,333 465 9,775 339
4,253 1.14 3417 118
o 11,069 297 10,392 360
72,113 19.36 49,905 1728
8,044 216 3,295 114
5,336 143 5,377 186
10,151 271 8.470 294
11,723 314 13,693 476
327 009 362 013
18846 451 7,180 249
52,427 14 04 38,377 133"
8,301 222 7,033 274
21012 563 22,718 789
29,313 785 30,651 10 63
5,840 156 4,308 149
10,502 282 8,537 29
14,481 3.89 7,399 256
L 5,807 1.55 4,297 149
) 36,630 982 24,541 850
3,167 085 5,143 178
7.970 2.14 6,283 218
11,137 299 11,426 39
6.897 185 3,436 119
9,036 241 4,039 140
15,933 426 7,475 259
23,409 628 18,047 626
10,602 283 9,181 319
8,773 235 9,130 315
1,733 046 705 024
13,030 349 9,242 321
7,596 205 3,709 163
42,046 1126 31,107 1079
B 107,189 2872 82,121 2847
- 1,445 050
- - 1,445 050
373,066 100 00
288,566 100 00

www lawdeb com
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12 Portfolio valuation

as at 31 December 2009

The number of investments increased from 135 at 31 December 2008 to 143 at 31 December 2009
Those shown in Halies are new holdings in the six months since 30 June 2009

_ - £000 % £000 %
Ol & gas Industriai transportation
Ot & gas producers Kuehne & Nagel (Switz} 1,28% 035
BP 13,200 354  Wincanton 962 026
Roval Dutch Shell 12,218 328 AP MollerMaersk (Den) 830 Q22
BG 2,805 075  BBA Awation 820 022
Total (Fra) 2,458 066  Autologc 352 009
30,681 823 4,253 114
(il equipment & services Support services
Schiumberger (USA) 4,031 108  Interserve 3,631 097
John Wood 1,544 041 Carilion 3,033 08l
National Ollwell Varco (USA) 1,365 037 SGS (Switz) 1,657 044
Saipem {ltaly) 825 022  Sodexo {Fra) 1,487 041
7,765 208  Johnson Service 895 024
B rorral Augean 366 010
asic matenals
Chermicals 11,069 297
Croda 1,600 043  Consumer goods
Asahi Kasei {Japan) 1,234 033  Automobiles & parts
Syngenta (Switz) 1,044 028 GKN 4,758 128
3,878 104  Toycta Mator (Japan) 1,807 048
Forestry & Bridgestone (lapan) 811 022
MG;§§1 ry & paper 2010 05q  Damierchryster (Ger) _ 668 018
2.010 0523 8,044 216
Mining geverages 4,657 125
\ageo )
BHP Bithtan 3990 107 pemodRicard (Fra) 679 018
39% 197 5336 143
Industrials Food producers
Construction & matenals Unilever 3,486 093
Balfour Beatty 2,493 067  Nestlé (Switz) 2,845 076
CRH (Ireland) 2,172 058  associated British Foods 2,055 055
Marshalis 542 015  pary Crest 721 019
5,207 140  Cadbury Schweppes Fin 4 875% 20/12/10 g:ilg 8 (1);
Uniq
Aerospace & defence
Semor 6,995 187 Premier Foods 86 002
Rolls Royce 4,108 110 10151 271
Meggitt 4,095 110 Household goods
BAE Systems 2,680 072  Bellway 4,058 109
17,878 479  Redrow 2,950 079
Electromc & electrical equipment Eg:ﬁ;t: (?:E::]C kiser g?ég 8 g;
Applied Materials (USA) 4,313 116 —_ .
Margan Crucible 3,991 107 11,723 314
TT Electronics 1,062 028  |Leisure goods
9,366 251 Harvard International 327 009
General industnials 327 0.08
Tomkins 2,415 065  Tobacco
Smith (DS) 2,335 063  Brtish Amencan Tobacco 7,056 189
Smiths 1,515 042 impenal Tobacco Finance 6 875% 13/06/12 4,677 125
Siemens (Ger) 742 020  impenal Tobacco 4,397 118
7.007 190  Swedish Malch (Swed} 716 019
industnal engineenng 16,846 451
Hill & Smlth 5.899 158 Health care
Werr Group " ggig 8 ;; Health care equipment & services
gummms (USA) 1750 047  fresenus (Ger) 3,096 083
elta - 035  Smith & Nephew 2989 080
Caterpillar (USA) %?:ﬁ 030 Fresenus Medical Care (Ger) 1608 043
ABB (Switz} - Synthes (Switz) 608 016
Renold 997 027
Severfieid-Rowen 432 012 8,301 222
17,333 465
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o o £000 % £000 %
Pharmaceubicals & biotechnology Gas water & multutdibes
GlaxoSrthKlne 10,552 283  Natonal Gnd 6 125% 15/04/14 5,683 152
Shire 3,025 081 National Gnid 1,694 045
AstraZeneca } 2,907 078  Severn Trent 1,659 Q44
Novartis (Switz 2,350 063 36 2 41
Sanofi-Aventis (Fra) 1,125 030 9.0
Roche (Switz) 1,053 028 Ema;(nc:als
anks
21012 983 \iepc 12,00 323

Consumer services Banco Santander (Spain} 3,526 085
Food & drug retallers Standard Chartered 3,111 083
Tesco 5,124 137  Barclays 1,929 052
Carrefour (Fra) 716 (019  BNP Parbas (Fra) 1,293 035

5,840 156 UBS {(Swit2) 829 022
General retalers ING (Neth) 671 018
Dunelm 3420 092 23,409 628
Marks & Spencer 5 875% 29/05/12 2,464 066 Nonlfe insurance
Findel 1,498 040  Amin 4,304 115
Inditex (Spain) 1,403 038 Hiscox 3,487 093
Lawson (Japan} 1,091 029  Chubb (USA} 2,284 06l
Topps Ties o 626 017  Chaucer 351 009
o B 10,502 282  Hardy Underwriing Bermuda 116 005
Media 10,602 283
Reed Elsevier 3,836 103 Life insurance/assurance
Pearson 2,450 066  Awva 3,109 083
Dailly Mail & General Trust 1,876 050 Prudential 2,813 075
BSkyB 1,684 045  Old Mutual 1,746 047
WPP 1,518 041 Insh Life & Permanent {Ire) 1,105 030
Thomson Reuters (Canada) 1,442 039 8773 235
Toppan Printing (Japan) 893 024 :
Yell 488 013 Real estate investrnents & services
Johnston Press 289 008 St Modwen Properties 1,733 046

14,481 389 1,733 046

Travel & Real estate investment trusts
Grrz\; A Kﬁ;ure 1.958 o052  Great Portland Estate 3,223 086
Carnval 1.150 031 Land Securhes 3,034 081
Brtish Arways 1.075 029 Mucklow (A&J) Group 2,426 065
Marstons 913 024  Segro 2227 060
Carnival (USA) 711 019 Hammerson 2,120 057

5,807 155 13,030 349

Financial services
g;i::;ﬁ;g'ggg;ﬁ?ﬁc atons Prowident Financiat 2,552 068
BT 1.754 047 International Personal Finance 1.5gO ggg
' Intermediate Capital Group 1,233

Cable & Wireless 1413 038 pejtsche Borse (Gerd 1033 028

3,167 085  Bureau Ventas (Fra) 953 026
Mobile telecommunications 6 . 7,331 198
Vodafone 5,467 14

' tquity investment instruments

inmarsat 2503 067 Renderson Asia Pacric Capital Growth (Paciic) 10,337 277

7,970 214 Henderson Japan Capital Growth {Japan) 10,049 269
Utiities Baillie Gifford Pacific 7,959 213
Electnor First State Asta Pacific 6,752 181
Scottlsh)é Southern Energy 3.468 093 Scottish Onental Smaller Company Trust 4,080 109
Scottsh & Southern Energy 5 75% 05/02/14 2,469 066  Herald Investment Trust 2869 077
Iberdrola (Spam) 960 026 42,046 1126

6,897 185
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Results

Independent fiduciary services revenue increased by
12 6% and net underlying income by 1 7% Profit
before tax increased by 3 8% from £8 4 million to
£8 8 millon Revenue return per share after tax
increased by 6 4% from 5 35p to 5 69p The profit
hefore tax for the year benefited from a one-off gain
of £694,000 as a result of the changes made to the
pension scheme from 1 April 2009

Independent fiduciary services businesses

Law Debenture 15 a leading prowider of independent
third party fiduciary services, including corporate
and penston trusts, agent for service of process,
treasury management and structured finance
admimistration, corporate senices, and whistle
blowing services The businesses are monitored and
overseen by a board comprising of the heads of the
relevant business areas, chaired by the senior non-
executive independent director

Rewview of 2009

As the financial results demonstrate, the
independent fiduciary businesses performed well,
and above expectation, in a very difficult year The
warldwide recession meant that the number of new
transachons and appointments was lower than in
previous years Nevertheless, the businesses
masmtained market share Increased activity levels
In pre-exishing transactions meant that demand for
our senvices remained high, with the opportunity to
charge additional fees Some notable highlights are
set out below

Corparate trusts

In the convertible bond sector, appointments
included Amerncan Investment Trust, British Airways
and [TV, as well as nordJK enbities such as Kenedix
(Japan) and UCB (Belgim) The investment grade
corporate bond market was active in 2009 There
was some achvity in the structured finance sector,
including our appointment to medium term note
programmes arranged by Electricity North West
Major project financings included energy projects in
Qatar and Pakistan, a telecommunications preject in
MNigeria and arcraft financings for the Brazian
manufacturer Embrarer involving a number of
international carriers
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14 Management review — independent fiduciary services

A large number of existing trust appointments
became active as onginators came under pressure,
meaning an increased leve! of special fees as the
trustee was called upon to help resolve problem
issues

Law Debenture also accepted an invitation to
become the principal sponsor of the Insolvency
Lawyer's Association, reflecting the work that we
undertake in many high profile insolvencies and in
providing mnovative solutions to complex problems
in the insclvency and restructuring sectors

Pension trusts

Pension trustees continue to face many challenges
and Law Debenture’s specialists have continued to
help client schemes through these very challenging
times The team has been strengthened by three
new recrutts, reflecting our appointment to a
number of new schemes, mcluding chairing the Tate
& Lyle scheme The ‘Law Debenture Debate’ 1s now
a major event in the pension industry calendar, and
we continue to pubhish updates of our techmcal
publication Pensions Essentials

Corporate services

Our long established and highly regarded service
of process business saw a downturn in new
appantments for the second successive year as
the globat recession continued adversely to affect
the number of corporate transactions

The corporate services business (provision of
corporate directors, company secretary, accounting
and incorporation service for special purpose
vehicles} had a good year, ansing from corporate
actions required for existing transactions, and from
winmng a good share of the limited new transactions
that came to market These inciuded an arrline
financing for Japan Arrlines and a securnitisation of
trade recenvables by the 1SS Group

Treasury and asset backed solutions

Following the successful merger of our treasury
management and structured finance admimstration,
we contnued to grow and develop these
businesses
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Safecall

Our external whistle blowing service continued to
win new appointments as companies increasingly
recognised the commercial and regulatory
benefits of ndependent confidential reporting
Inrcads are being made into public sector
organisations, NGOs and international charities
{such as the International Federation of Red Cross
and Red Crescent Societies) as these bodies also
begin to recognise the benefits of an independent
whistle blowing service

Overseas

Umited States

The US business had a very successful year, with a
record number of successor trustee appointments,
stemming from the increased level of US bankruptcy
filings, including General Motors, CapMark Trust,
and Nortel Networks Other notable appointments
included new (non-successor) trusteeships for Nokia,
NX Energy and the Hospital Corporation of America
The US corporate services businesses, including
Delaware Corporate Services, also had a strong
year, increasing both activity levels and revenues
when measured agamnst 2008

Hong Kong

Hong Kong's relatively early emergence from
recession saw an upturn in actiwity during the
second half of the year, leading to a strong recovery
in the number of our escrow and service of process
appointments, and new trustee roles such as the
Golden Meditech convertible bond 1ssue

Channel islands

Special fee tncome increased as pre-existing
projects were restructured or unwound A number
of new trustee and escrow roles were taken on,
notably ansing from the energy sector
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Summary and outlook

Despite difficult condtions in all of the markets in
which we operate, our independent fiduciary
businesses have all held ther positions and in some
cases performed ahead of expectaton 2010 has
started steadlly The emergence of the leading
economies from recession should in due course
lead to increased actwity levels, but this will not be
a quick process Our activity levels will again be
tnfluenced by work arising from pre-existing
transactions, as well as new appointments
Meanwhile, we will seek to take advantage of any
new opportunihies that might anse, either from our
existing businesses or by diversification into other
areas where the expertise of an independent third
party 1s called for

Caroline Banszky
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16 Corporation advisers and information

Registered office
Fifth Floor

100 Wood Street
London EC2V 7EX

Telephone 020 7606 5451
Facsimile 020 7606 0643
{Registered in England - No  30397)

Investment portfolio manager
Henderson Global Investors Limited
201 Bishopsgate

London EC2M 3AE

Auditors

BDO LLP

55 Baker Street
London W1U 7EU

Global custodians

The Bank of New York Mellon
160 Queen Victora Street
London EC4V 4LA

A member of
iC
The Association of
Inve.tment Companies
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Registrar and transfer office
Computershare Investor Services PLC
PO Box 82

The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristof BS99 7NH

Telephone Q870 707 1129

Bankers
The Royal Bank of Scotland Group

Stockbrokers

JPMorgan Cazenove Limited
20 Moorgate

London EC2R 6DA
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The directors present therr annual report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2009 The Corporation retains ifs
status as an investment trust and has been treated
by HM Revenue & Customs {'HMRC") and appraved
as such for the year ended 31 December 2008, the
latest year for which financial statements have been
subrmitted Such approval for the year ended 2008 1s
subject to there being no subsequent enquiry under
Corporaton Tax Self Assessment In the opinion of
the directors, the Corporation has subsequently
conducted its affars so as to enable it to obtan
sechon 842 approval under the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1985 The Corporation, which
(as far as the directors are aware} s not a close
company, Is registered as an investment company
as defined i section 833 of the Companies Act
2006 and operates as such The directors consider
that the group operates as a going concern

In August 2002, all of the Corperation’s ordinary
shares of 25p were split into five ordinary shares of
5p Wherever share price data 1s shown which relates
to a penod before August 2002, the pnice has been
restated to reflect the share spht

Business review

The group divides into two distinct complementary
areas of business The Corporation is a global
investmant trust, its portfolio of nvestments being
managed by Henderson Global Investors Limited
{Henderson’) Independent fidutiary services
actwmibes are corporate trusts, treasury management
and structured finance administration, pension
trusts, corporate services {including agent for
service of process) and whistle blowing services
The services are provided by whally owned
subsidianes of the Corporahion with offices in
London, Sunderland, New York, Delaware, Hong
Kong, the Channel Islands and the Cayman Istands
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Directors’ report 2009

The Corporation's objective for the mvestment trust
1s to achieve long term capital growth in real terms
and steadily increasing income The directors
consider a number of performance measures to
assess the group's success in achieving its
cbjectves The key performance indicators used

to measure the progress and performance of the
group are net asset value total return per share,
the discount or premium in share price to net asset
value, and the cost of running the portfolio as a
percentage of its value The net asset value total
return combines the total return on the portfolio and
the earnings of the independent fiduciary service
business

The net asset value performance 1s included in the
charman's statement and the premium or discount
to net asset value and cost of running the portfolio
are given within the 10 year record

The outlook for the investment portfelio 15 discussed
in the mvestment manager’s report The independent
fiduciary services businesses may continue to be
adversely affected by the difficult market conditions
that may conhinue for some time Actiwity in some of
the markets where the businesses operate remamns
subdued because of the recession, and it will be
difficult to maintain revenues at the levels reached in
recent years The Managing Director and her team
will continue to seek new opportunities wherever
possible

Law Debenture considers that none of its trading
achwittes has a negative environmental impact

The group's employees are provided with a modern
working environment which complies with all relevant
safety regulations Employees recewve a range of
benefits designed to promote good health including
health insurance and medicals Independent
confidential helpiine facilities are provided to enable
employees to deal with 1ssues of concern to them,
whether work related or domestic As a result of
these measures, and senior management’s open
style, staff turnover 15 extremmely low (normally less
than 10% per annum)
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18 Directors’ report

continued

The group does not support social and community
nifiatives, its offices being based in norrresidental
financial districts

The board 15 required to give information about
persons with whomn Law Debenture has contractual
or other arrangements that are essential to the
business of the group In the view of the board, the
only contract that s essenbal 1s that in place with
Henderson, detalls of which are given elsewhere in
the dwectors' report

Investment policy

The Corporation carries on its business as a global
growth investment trust Its objective 15 set out n
the business review The am 1s to achieve a higher
rate of total return than the FTSE Actuaries All-Share
Index through investing in a portfolio diversified both
geographically and by industry

To achieve this, investments are selected on the
basis of what appears most attractive in the
conditions of the tme This approach means that
there 1s no obligation to hold shares in any particular
type of company, ndustry or geographical location
The independent fiduciary services businesses do
not form part of the investment portfolio and are
outwith this policy

The Corporation’s portfolio will typically contain
between 70 and 150 listed investments The
portiolio 15 widely diversified both by industrial
sector and geographic location of mnvestments in
order to spread nvestment nsk

Whilst performance 1s measured against loca! and
UK indices, the composition of these indices does
not wfluence the construction of the portfolo As a
consequence, It s expected that the Corporation's
investment portfolio and performance will deviate
from the comparator indices

Because the Corporation's assets are invested
mternationally and without regard to the composition
of indices, there are no restrictions on maximum or
minimum stakes in particular regions or sndustry
sectors However, such stakes are monitored in
detail by the board at each board meeting n order
to ensure that sufficient diversification 15 maintained
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Liquidity and long-term borrowings are managed
with the aim of improwing returns to shareholders
The policy on geanng 1s to assume only that leve! of
gearing which balances nsk with the objectve of
increasing the return to shareholders In pursutt of
its investment objective, nvestments may be held i,
inter alia, equity shares, fixed interest securtbes,
nterests n imited hability partnerships, cash and
lquid assets Derwvatives may be used but only with
the prior authorisation of the board Investment in
such instruments for trading purposes 15 proscribed
It 1s permissible to hedge against currency
movements on both capital and income account,
subject agan to prior authonsation of the board
Stock lending, trading in suspended shares and
short posttions are not permitted

The Corporation’s investment actwvities are subject
to the following imitabons and restrictions

* No investment may be made which raises the
aggregate value of the largest 20 holdings,
excludmg investments in QEICs and 1n Scothsh
Onental Smaller Company Trust, to more than
40% of the Corporation's portfolio, including cash
The value of a new acquisition m any one
company may not exceed 5% of total portfolio
value (including cash) at the tme the nvestment s
made, further additions shall not cause a single
holding to exceed 5%, and board approval must
be sought to retan a holding, should its value
increase above the 5% limit

« The Corporation apples a celing on effective
geanng of 150% Whie effective geanng will be
employed in a typical range of 90% to 120%, the
board retains the ability to reduce equity exposure
to below 90% if deemed appropnate

The Corporation may not make investments in
respect of which there i1s unhmited liabilty

» Bopard approval must be sought for any proposed
direct investments in certain jurisdichons

« The Corporation has a policy not to mvest rore
than 15% of gross assets in other UK histed
investment companies
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Investment pohlicy - implementation
Duning the year, the assets of the Corporation were
nvested in accordance with the investment policy

A full hst of holdings 1s disclosed on pages 12 and
13 and detarled analyses of the spread of
investments by geographic region and industry
sector are shown on pages 9to 11 NAV relahve
performance aganst the FTSE All-Share Index is
shown on page 3

The top 20 equity holdings (excluding the OEICs)
compnise 34% of the total portfolio (2008 37%)

The extent to which the Corporation’s objective has
been achreved, and how the investment policy was
implemented, are described in the chairman's
statement on page 6 and the investment manager's
review on page 7

Principal nisks and uncertamties

The principal risks of the Corporation relate to its
nvestment activibes and mclude market price risk,
foreign currency nisk, iquidity nisk, interest rate nisk,
and credit nsk These are explaned in note 19 to
the accounts

The principal nsks of the ndependent fiduciary
services business artse during the course of
defaults, potential defaults and restructunings where
we have been appomted to prowide services To
mitigate these risks we work closely with our legal
adwisers and, where appropniate, financial advisers,
both tn the set up phase to ensure that we have as
many protections as practicable, and at all other
stages whether or not there 15 a danger of default

Revenue, dvidends and reserves

The revenue return atiributable to shareholders for
the year ended 31 December 2009 was
£15,257,000 The directors recommend a final
divwdend of 8 Op per share, which together with the
interim dividend of 4 2p paid in September 2009,
will produce a total of 12 2p {2008 12 2p) The
final dmidend will be paid on 1 Apnl 2010 to holders
on the register on the record date of 5 March 2010
After deduction of the intenm and final dradends of
£14,311,000 (2008 £14,306,000}, consolidated
revenue reserves increased by £946,000 (2008
increase of £3,942,000)
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Directors

All the directors on page 5 held office throughout

the year Robert Willams served as a director until !
the annual general meeting on 7 April 2009 when he

retired and did not seek reelection

The board decided that, effective from the 2009
AGM, all directors should be required to stand for
re-election every year The list of candidates, which
the board suppeorts, 1s set out tn the notice of annual
general meeting

No director has a service contract with any
member of the group in excess of one year or was
matenally interested in any other contract with any
member of the group During the year, liability
msurance was mantained for the benefit of
directors and other officers

Directors’ shareholdings

Beneficial terests as at 31 December 2009 2008
C J Banszky 144,351 75,342
AC Cates 35,774 35,580
JA Kay 15,000 15,000
DCP McDougall 410,000 410,000
C Smith 40,000 -
R Wilhams nfa 110,392

John Kay is a nonbeneficial frustee of a trust that
acquired 5,000 shares on 27 November 2009

Caroline Banszky exercised 31,364 Executive Share
Ophons on 10 January 2010, bringing her total
holding at the date of this report to 175,715 There
have been no other changes in directors’ interests
since 31 December 2009 No director has a
beneficial interest in the shares of any subsidiary
company

The beneficiat interest of James Henderson at
31 December 2009 was 50,000
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continued

Directors’ canflicts of interests

The Companies Act 2006 imposes a statutory duty
on directors to avoid conflicts of interest The board
has in place appropnate procedures to deal with
conflicts and potential conflicts, including an annual
review, and in the opmion of the board those
procedures are operating effectively Each director
has declare¢ all matters that might give nse to a
potential conflict of interest and these have been
considered and approved by the board

Regulatory complhance

The Corparation 1s subject to continuing obligations
applicable to hsted companies, overseen by the UK
Listing Authority ('UKLA"), which is a division of the
Financral Services Authonty One company in the
group, The Law Debenture Trust Corporation pl ¢,
1s regulated in the conduct of a imited range of
authonsed business activities The directors receive
periodic reports from the compliance officer about
its conduct

Law Debenture’s responsibiliies as an
institutional shareholder
The Corporation’s policy 1s as follows

Law Debenture will normally support management
and, where practicable, vote in favour of resoluhions
proposed by the boards of companies in which it
has a shareholding, but reserves the nght to vote
against management where appropriate

The board determines the Corporation's investment
strategy but does not 1ssue express instructions to
the mvestment manager on transactions m particular
shares Where Law Debenture believes that
management 15 failing in ts duties, Law Debenture
{or onits behalf, the Corporation's investment
manager} may attempt to enter into dialogue with
the company concerned in an attempt to alter the
management's posiion

Where this 1 not possible, or where management
declines to ater its behaviour, Law Debenture wall
consider voting against resolubions proposed by
the board
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Henderson, on Law Debenture’s behalf, monitors
companies In which Law Debenture is invested, and
from time to time may discuss matters of corporate
governance with such companies The Henderson
corporate governance umt witl nobfy Law
Debenture's investment manager, who in turn will
notify Law Debenture, should matters anse that
might lead the Corporatron to consider ntervening,
abstaining or voting against a particular proposal

The Corporation will not hold shares in cormpanies
whose ethical and environmental practices are i its
view hikely to damage the performance of the
business to the detnment of its shareholders

Repurchase of shares

During the year, the Corporation did not repurchase
any of its shares for cancellation It intends o

seek shareholder approval to renew its powers to
repurchase shares for cancellation up to 14 99%
of the Corporation's 1ssued share capital, if
circumstances are appropriate

Shares may be 1ssued in accordance with the
articles of association - see AGM resolution 11 i

Substantial shareholdings and share information
As at 18 February 2010, there were no
shareholders that had notfied the Corporation of an
interest n 3% or more of the 1ssued share capital
Share information as required by section 992 of the
Companies Act 2006 appears at page 68 Unless
expressly stated the Corporation has no disclosure
to make under that sechon

Shareholder relations

The Corporation encourages communication
between the management and shareholders on
matters of mutual interest All shareholders receive
a copy of the annual report and the intenm
statement, and the Corporatron also prowdes this
service to shareholders in nominee comparnies
where the nominee has made appropriate
arrangements Shareholders wishing to receve
reports and other communications electronically
may do so by wnting to the Corporation in addition
to the periodic regulatory reports that are published
via the stock exchange, the Corporation publishes a
monthly factsheet about the investment portfoho
performance and prospects on its website
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Employee partictpation

Employees are informed of the financial aspects of
the group's performance through periodic
management meetings Copies of the annual report
and the mtenm statement are made available to all
employees Details of the general bonus scheme are
contamed n the remuneration report on page 29
The Corporation has since 1992 operated SAYE
schemes i which all UK fulltime employees are
eligible to participate after completing a minimum
service requirement

Options outstanding under the SAYE schemes at
31 December 2009 were

Number of Shares Exerose
Date of grant option holders  under option pnce
10 June 2005 9 13,721 24073
9 August 2006 9 14074 283 70p
11 June 2007 5 4867 349 76p
22 May 2008 14 51,268 314 24p
27 May 2009 41 199,907 21150p

From 1993 to 2004, the Corporation operated
Executive Share Option Schemes, which enabled
executives to be granted ophions to acquire shares in
the Corporation Options granted under the scheme
are normally exercisable between the third and tenth
anniversanes of the option grant date For options
granted from 1998 onwards, such exercise was
contingent upon targets for the independent fiduciary
services business being achieved Following a board
decision in 2005 to discontinue the scheme and
replace it with a Deferred Share Bonus Plan, no
further options have been granted and tota!l options
outstanding at 31 December 2009 were as follows

Number of Shares Exercise
Date of grant option holders  under option price
28 March 2003 12 110,241 174 4p

2 March 2004 10 80,776 228 2p
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Investment management

Henderson is responsible for the management of
the investment portfclio, which has performed
satisfactonly over a period of years Henderson is
fully aware of the Corporation’s investment policy
and provides a cost competitive service The
directors therefore believe that the continuing
appointment of Henderson is in the best interests
of shareholders The agreement does not cover
custody or the preparation of data associated with
investment performance, which are outsourced,
or record keeping, which 1s maintained by the
Corporation Fees paid to Henderson in the year
amounted to £751,000 {2008 £945,000) and
are based on 0 25% per annum of the average
quarterly portfolio value, excluding cash The
underlying management fee of 1% on the
Corporation’s holdings in the Henderson Japanese
and Pacific OEICs has been rebated

The Corporation holds no shares in members of the
HHG Group, the parent company of Henderson, it
has been notified that funds managed by members
of the HHG Group held 145,666 shares in the
Corporation at 31 December 2009

Charitable donations
During the year the Corporation made charitable
donations of £867 (2008 £1,732)

Payment of supplers

The group 15 commuitted to seeking the best terms
possible for alt types of business and hence there I1s
no single policy as to the terms used For most
suppliers, the average credit penod 1s 30 days
Special arrangements exist for suppliers of certan
legal serwvices, where the group charges these costs
to its clients
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in
refation to the financial statements

The directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company, for safeguarding the assets of the
company, for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregulanties and for the preparation of a directors'
report and directors’ remuneration report which
comply with the requirements of the Companies
Acts

The directors are responsible for preparing the
annual report and the financial statements in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 The
directors are also required to prepare financial
statements for the group In accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (IFRSs) and Article 4
of the IAS Regulation The directors have chosen to
prepare financial statements for the Corporation in
accordance with IFRSs

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that
fmancial statements present farly for each financial
year the Corporation’s financial position, financial
performance and cash flows This requires the
faithful representation of the effects of transachons,
other events and conditions in accordance with the
defintbions and recognition critenia for assets,
habiibes, income and expenses set out in the
International Accounting Standards Board's
‘Framework for the preparation and presentation of
financial statements’ In wirtually all circumstances, a
fair presentation will be achieved by comphance with
all apphcable IFRSs A farr presentation also requires
the directors to

+ consistently select and apply appropnate
accounting polictes,

» present nformation, ncluding accounting policies,
in a manner that prowides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information, and

* provide additional disclosures when comphance
with the specific requirements in IFRSs 1s
wsufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particutar transachons, other events
and condibons on the entity’s financial posibion
and financial performance
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Financial statements are published on the group's
website in accordance with legislation i the

United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements, which may
vary from legislation in other jurisdichons The
mantenance and integnty of the Corporation's
website 1s the responsibility of the directors The
directors’ responsibility also extends to the integrity
of the financial statements contained theremn

Statement of information given to auditors
The directors have confirmed that so far as they
are aware, there s no relevant audit information of
which the Corporation’s auditors are unaware, and
that they have taken all the steps that they ought
to have taken as a director in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Corporation's auditors are
aware of that information

Directors’ responsibility statement pursuant
to DTR4
The directors confirm to the best of thewr knowledge

The group financial statements have been prepared |
n accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs)

and Article 4 of the IAS Regulations and give a true

and farr view of the assets, liabilities, financial

posion and profit or loss of the group

The annual report includes a far review of the
development and performance of the business and
the position of the group and parent company,
together with a description of the prncipal nsks and
uncertainties that they face

Audrtors

A resolution to re-appoint BDO LLP as auditors to
the Corporation will be proposed at the annual
general meeting

By order of the board

Law Debenture Corporate Services Limited
Secretary

22 February 2010
Registered in England - No 30397
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The directors are required to report on how the
Corporation has applied the mar and supporting
principles in the Combined Code on Corporate
Governance (the ‘Code’}, and to confirm that it has
complied with the Code’s prowisions or, where this
has not been the case, to provide an explanation
This report 15 In respect of that version of the Code
pubhshed in June 2008, applicable to reporting
penods beginning on or after 29 June 2008

A copy of the Code may be obtained by visiting
www frc org uk The Corporation was a constituent
of the FTSE 250 dunng the penod of the review, so
all of the prowvisions of the Code apply to it However,
the Code recognises that mvestment companies
such as Law Debenture may have board structures
which might affect the relevance of parbcular
provisions of the Code Where Law Debenture has
departed from any prowisions of the Code, this s
explained below This corporate governance
statement 1s intended to form a part of the directors’
report

The board - role, medus operandi

and appraisal

The board includes a majonty of non-executive
directors The names of the directers, all of whom
served through the year, along with biographies,
are on page 5 of the annual report In addition,

Mr Robert Wihams served as a non-executive
director untl his retirement at the annual general
meeting on 7 Apnit 2009

The board 15 responsible for the overall strategy and
management of the group, setting investment policy
and strategy and ensurning that the Corporation i1s
operating in comphance with statutory and legal
ohligations There 1s a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved for board decision, and this
document s published on the Corporation’s website
{www lawdeb com under westment trust/investor
information) Matters connected with strategy and
management, structure and capital, financial
reporting and control, mvestment trust portfclio,
contracts, shareholder communication, board
membership and other appontments, remuneration
and corporate governance are reserved for the
board There 15 a separate schedule setting out the
dwsion of responsibility between the charman and
managing director
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The charrman takes personal responsibility for
leadership of the board and ensures that directors
recetve accurate, timely and clear mformation He
reviews the provision of information with the
company secretary at least annually

The board cperates as a collective decision
making forum indmdual directors are required to
scrutiuse reports produced by the executive, and
are encouraged to debate 1ssues in an open and
constructive manner If one or more directors
cannot support a consensus decision, a vote will
be taken and the views of a dissenting director
recorded in the minutes

Procedures are in place to enable independent
professional advice to be taken by indwidual
directors at the Corporation’s expense, and
appropriate insurance cover 1S tn place n respect
of legal action against the directors

The board meets regularly throughout the year The
attendance records of the directors {both at meetings
of the board and, where relevant, meetings of board
committees) are set out n the table below There was
also a strategy day dunng the year attended by the
directors and chief financtal officer

Board  Remuneration Audt  Neminabons
Number of meetings
in the year 9* 4 4 1
Meetings attended by
C ) Banszky 9 - - -
AC Cates 9 4 4 1
JA Kay 8 4 4 1
O CP McDougall 8 4 4 1
C Smith (appointed 1 March) 6 3 3 -

2

R Wilkams {retired 7 Apnl)

*One of these was held at shert nohice to take routine decisions

The board keeps under review the performance of
the executve director, and the charman formally
appraises all the directors each year The non-
executive directors meet once each year (without
the presence of the charrman) to review the
charman's performance, the results of the review
betng discussed with the chairman by the senior
mndependent director

Mr Cates is the senior independent director He 1s
avalable to shareholders who have concerns that
cannot be addressed through the chairman,
managing director or chief financial officer
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continued

The board - independence

At least half of the board, excluding the Charman,
must be independent non-executive directors The
board has concluded that as at the date of this
report, excluding the chawrman, three of the four
other directors are mdependent non-executives In
judging independence, the board takes into account
whether or not a director 1s independent of
management and any matenal business or other
relatronship that could affect or interfere with the
exercise of objective judgement by the drector,
or his/her ability to act in the best interests of the
Corporation and its subsidiaries

The charrman, Mr McDougall, was independent at
appointment and continues to be independent in the
view of the board, notwithstanding the fact that he
has served as a director for more than nine years
and that he 1s not taken nto account m assessing the
independence of the board as a whole Assessment
of mdependence should be based on ¢haracter and
conduct, not on any arbitrary time kmit

The board 15 satisfied that Mr McDougall's other
commitments do not nterfere with the discharge of
his responsibilitres to Law Debenture, and s
satisfied that he makes sufficient time available to
discharge his duties as chairman of Law Debenture

Mr Cates was until 30 Apnl 2002 a partner of
Chifford Chance LLP, a firm that has prowided advice
to certain of the independent fiduciary services
subsidianes from time to tme The board has
concluded that this does not affect the assessment
of Mr Cates as independent for two reasons First,
the Corporation’s independent fiduciary senaces
businesses obtain legal advice from many leading
law firms during the course of a year Second, in
many nstances, external factors {rather than Law
Debenture's preference} dictate the choice of legal
adwviser, or conflicts of interest dictate that one firm
must be chosen ahead of another

Professor Kay was independent at appointment in
September 2004 and remains $o

Mr Srmuth was independent at appointment in March
2009 and remains so

Mr Williams was not considered to be independent
prior to his retirement on 7 April as he had
previously spent 11 years as an executive director
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The board - re-election and renewal

The nommatons committee - described m more
detail elsewhere i this report - ensures that the
board has n place arrangements for crderly and
transparent appointments to the board There are
job descriptions in place for nonexecutive directors’
roles, and the board has wntten terms and
condibons of appontment for non-executive
directors, which are available for inspection at the
AGM Particular care 1s taken to ensure that non-
executive directors have sufficient time to commit to
the dubes expected of them No new non-executive
director 1s apponted without first baing interviewed
by each existing non-executive director

All new directors undergo an induction process,
involving presentations by the managing director and
each buswmess head and meetings with the
investment manager

All directors are submitted for annual re-election,
subject to continwed satisfactory performance, wiich
15 assessed as descrnbed above There 1s no
maximum number of terms that a director may serve

Directors’ remuneration
Detalls of the directors’ remuneration appear in the
remuneration report on page 32

Board committees

The board has established a normmations
committee, an audit committee and a remuneration
committee, to which it has delegated certam
responsibilities Each comrmittee has terms of
reference, which are published on the Corporation’s
website (www lawdeb com/investment-
trust/investor-information/corporate-
governance) Membership of the committees 1s
kept under review, taking account of the Code's
acknowledgement of the position of investment
trusts The board 1s deliberately kept small in the
best interests of shareholders It is the expertise of
directors that counts, not the number of them The
Corporation 15 not apologetrc for the minor areas of
noncomplance reported in the paragraphs below

All members of board committees are independent
nonexecutive directors The Code says that the
chairman should not be a member of the audit
committee The Corporatien’s board has concluded
that given the nature of 1ssues considered by the

www lawdeb com




committee and the charman’s particular experbise in
the financial management of investment trusts, it 1s
appropriate to have four members including the
charman Non-compliance with this part of the Code
IS in the shareholders' best interests

The Code prowides that the charman may be a
member of the remuneration commuttee but that he
should not be its charman The Corporation’s board
has concluded that it 1s appropriate, given the size
of the board, for the chairman to be on the
remuneration committee and, given his experience
and knowledge, that he is best placed of the four
committee members to chair it Noncomphance with
this part of the Code s, agam, in the shareholders’
best interests

A summary of each commuttee s set out below

The number of meetings held dunng the year, and
the attendance record of committee members 1s set
out in the table on page 23

Nominations committee

Role

To keep under review the structure, size and
composttion of the beard and make recommendations
about adjustments that are deemed necessary, and to
ensure effective succession planning in accordance
with legal and corporate governance needs

Key duties
« |dentdfication and nomination for board approval of
sutable candidates to fill vacancies,

* Succession planning (in particular of the chairman
and managing director),

« Making recommendations about the re-
appointment of nonexecutive directors, and

* Ensurning that the board and its committees are
constituted to comply so far as practicable with
the Code

Members

D C P McDougall {charman}
AC Cates

JA Kay

C Smith

Audit committee

Role

To assist the board in the management of the
group's finances and financial reporting structure
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Key duties

* Monitoring the independence and objectmty of the
audrtors, their performance and remuneraton and
making recommendations on the appointment of
new auditors,

L ]

Monitonng the statutory audit,

Reviewing the annual and intenm accounts before
submssion to the board, including particular
focus on changes in accounting policy etc, and

Reviewing the effectiveness of systems of internal
control and nsk management (including
momtorng the internal audit function)

Members

C Smith {charman)
D CP McDougall
AC Cates

JA Kay

The board 1s satisfied that all members have the
necessary recent and relevant financial expenence
to serve

Remuneration committee

Role

To develop the Corporation’s remuneration policy
and oversee its implementation, monmitoring the
effectiveness of the policy as 1t relates to the
group's executives

Key duties

+ Reviewing and agreeing the remuneration and
benefits of the executive director and senior
executives In the hght, as relevant, of corporate
performance against a range of measures,

Development of total remuneration packages,
taking account of factors set out in the Code,
based in part on performance and subject to
suitable performance measurements as set by the
committee, and

» To make recommendations to the board for any
changes to long term incentive arrangements

Members

D C P McDougall (chairman)
AC Cates

JA Kay

C Smith

The board does not operate a Management
Engagement Committee The duties of such a
committee are undertaken directly by the board
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26 Corporate governance

Accountability and audit

The statement of directors’ responsibilities in
relation to the financial statements appears on
page 22 of the annual report and accounts The
independent auditors’ report appears on pages 34
and 35 The directors confirm that the Corporation
15 a going concern as evidenced by the financial
statements, which demonstrate a healthy position,
takuang nto account all known and future
anticipated habihbies, and the group’s ability to
meet those habiities

The financial statements present a balanced and
clear assessment of the financial posibon and
prospects of the Corporation and the group The
financial statements are reviewed by the audit
committee, then approved by the board, and signed
by the charman and managing director

Non-audit services provided by the auditor are
reviewed by the audit committee to ensure that
ndependence 1$ mantaned Non-audit fees are
shown at note 3 on page 45 The board's policy 1S
that non-audit work (which normally consists of
taxation and other technical adwvice) can be carried
out by the Corporation’s auditors unless theres a
conflict of interest or someone else 15 considered to
have more relevant expenence

Internal controls

The following paragraphs descnbe the framework of
internal controls in place to ensure that the
Corporabon complies with the Financial Reporting
Council's guidance (the Turnbull gindance’) which
forms a part of the Code, and with the oblgahons of
the UKLA's Disclosure and Transparency Rules which
require a description of the main features of the
internal control and nsk management systems in
relation to the financial reporting process This section
should be read in conunction with the business review,
from whuch shareholders will better understand the
risks that cur internal controls are in place to manage

The board momtors the effectiveness of internal
controls on a contnuous basis and n a number of
ways, both directly through mam board general
reviews and also by the more specific work carned
out by the audit committee The various
mechanisms include
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» Board review of the group’s matrix of key nsks
and controls,

+ An internal audit function, which involves not only
each business department (ncluding overseas
offices) bemng subject to audit on a regular basis,
but also regular reviews of other business wide
processes,

»

Testing by the complance officer of the Financial
Services Authonty (FSA) regulated business
systems and controls,

Periodic reports to the board by the compliance
officer about fegal and regulatory changes, and
the steps that the board must take to comply, and

Rewiew of reports by the external auditors on therr
annua! audit work, and specific checks carred out
on behalf of treasury management clients

The nternal audit programme and system of
compliance checks have both been developed using
a nsk-based methodology and an evaluation of
process controls

The board considers that the above measures
constitute continuing application of the Turnbull
guidance and form an important management tool
n the monitoring and control of the group's
operational nsks

An important element of the overall controls remains
a continuous review of the quality and effectveness
of internal financial controls of the group During the
year, the board has continued to require that the
group mamtains proper accounting records, so that
it can rely on the financiat informaton it receves to
mazke appropnate business decisions and also that
the group's assels are safeguarded Key elements
of the systems of interna!l control continue to be

+ Regular qualtative self-assessment of the
effectiveness of the indnadual controls mamntained
in the overall internal financia! control framework,

» Preparation by management of a comprehensive
and detaled budget system, nvolving annual
board approval and monthly companson at board
level of actual results with budgets and forecasts,

« Systematic reporting to the board of matters
relating to htigahion, insurance, pensions, taxation,
accountng and cash management as well as
legal, comphance and company secretanial 1ssues,
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Rewview of internal audit reports by the appropnate
operatmg company board and the audit committee,

Review of the ternal controls of those services,
such as investment management, custody and
registration, which have been delegated to third
parties, such review being conducted during the
initial contractual negotiation and on a regular
basis, including annual discusstons with the senior
management and compliance staff of Henderson
Global Investors Limited,

Monitoring by the board of the investment
management process, including the establishment
and maintenance of investment guidelines,
receving a repert from the investment manager
at each board meeting, the review of all
transactions with the investment manager and
regular reconciliations of the records of the group
with those of the global custodran and nvestment
data services prowder, and

* Receipt of frequent and detalled reports about the
independent fiduciary services businesses,
inchrding reports (and attendance at board
meetings from time to time) from managing
drrectors of overseas subsidianes

The systems of internal financiat control are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance aganst matenal mis-statement or loss

By means of the procedures set out above, the
directors have estabhished a process for identifying,
evalyating and monitoring the effectiveness of the
internal contro! systems for the penod This process
has been in place throughout 2009 and will be
rewewed by the board on a regular basis

Arrangements are in place by which staff of the
group may, in confidence, raise concerns under the
Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 about possible
impropriches in matters of financial reporting or
other matters If necessary, any member of staff
with an honest and reasonable suspicion about
possible impropriety may raise the matter directly
with the charman of the audit commuttee In
addition, the staff have access to an external whistle
blowing service Arrangements are in place for the
proportionate and independent investigation of such
matters and for appropnate follow up action
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Relations with shareholders and mstitutional
shareholder responsibilities

The Corporation's comphance with these aspects of
the Code 1s descnbed separately within the
directors’ report

Information about share capntal

The information that the Corporahon s required to
disclose about its share capital can be found in the
directors’ report (significant holders} and AGM notice
{total voting nghts) There are no other disclosures
that need to be made about share capital

Annual general meeting
Details of the annual general meeting {"AGM') for
2010 are set out at pages 65 to 68

The board recegnises the value of the AGM as an
opportunity to communicate with nvestors and
encourage therr parhcipation Separate resofutions
are put to the AGM on each substantally separate
1ssue Except where a poll has been called, the level
of proxies lodged for each resolutron, and the balance
for and against the resolubion and the number of
abstentions 15 disclosed to the meeting This
information 1s published immediately after the AGM on
the Corporation’s website Those appointing a proxy
have the opportunity to indicate ‘vate wathheld' if they
wish neither to support nor oppose a resolution The
notice of the AGM and related papers are sent to
shareholders at least 20 working days befare the
meeting Where requested by nominee holders,
annual reports and related documentation are
circulated to beneficial owners and the Corporabion 1s
happy for beneficial owners to attend the AGM and
{where appropriate arrangements have been made
with the nominee} to vote their shares in person

Summary statement of compliance

The board has concluded that, as demanstrated by
the disclosures made in the foregoing, the
Corporation has comphed throughout 2009 with the
requirements of the Combined Code on Corperate
Governance or, where it has not complied, an
explanation has been prowided Compliance 1s
reported in respect of the entire Code
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28 Remuneration report

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the board | submit the remuneration
report for The Law Debenture Corporation p l ¢ for
2009 The report contains specific and detaled
information about the way directors of the
Corporation are remunerated, and the amounts they
receve Some of the information 1s histoncal, some
forward locking Those sechons that have been
audited in accordance with legislative requirements
are shown at the top of each relevant paragraph

The remuneration report will be put to shareholders
for approval as an ordinary resclution at the annual
general meeting

Douglas McDougall

Charrman, remuneratrow %
Remuneration commuittee - membership
and advisers

The board has delegated responsibiity for
consideration of all matters relabing to the executive
director’s remuneration to a remeneration
committee All of the members of the committee
{iisted at page 25) are independent, non-executive
directors

The committee met four bmes duning the year The
managing director attended all of the meetings at
the mvitation of the chairman (although she was not
present when details of her own remuneration were
discussed) The managing director, the chief
financial officer and the company secretary provided
advice when called upon to do so As for external
adwisers, the committee appointed Lesley Pearson,
a remuneration consultant, to undertake salary
benchmarking exercises No other external advisers
were engaged duning the year

To the extent required by statute, disclosures in
thus remuneration report have been audited - the
ndependent auditors’ report appears on pages 34
and 35
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The Corporation’s remuneration policy

The remuneration committee and the board
recognise that the Corporation and its subsidianes
work in competitive markets The aim 1s to ensure
that remuneration packages ofiered to the executive
director and senior executives are competitive, and
designed to attract, retain and motivate individuals
of the highest calibre

The remuneration committee operates, and will
continue n the future to operate, n accordance with
key principles which are

* Remuneration packages should be competitive but
not extravagant, and should broadly be in line with
average packages in the markets in which Law
Debenture operates, and

» There should be a clear ink between total
remuneration and performance

The major components of Law Debenture's
remuneration packages for the executive director
and senior executives comprise basic safary,
general bonus scheme, which may be invested in

a Share Incentive Plan, calculated by reference to
the success of the independent fiduciary services
businesses, discretionary bonus based upon
independent fiduciary services business performance
and the attainment of personal targets, a deferred
bonus scheme for certain senior execubves,
designed to enhance retention of people key to

the strategic growth of the independent fiduciary
services busimess, pensions provision (partly in a
contnbutory, funded, HMRC approved, final salary
occupational pension scheme and partly in a
defined contribution scheme), and parbcipation in a
Sharesave Scheme Details of the policy applied in
each component are outlined below Non-executive
directors receive fees as described at paragraphs 8
and 10, but do not receive any other benefits

The sole executive director duning the period of this
report was Mrs Banszky (managing director}

The policy applied in respect of each component of
the remuneration package 15 as follows
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1 Basic salary

Basic salary 15 set at levels consistent with individual
performance and the market rates applicable to jobs
of similar complexity and responsibility To measure
this, the remuneration committee engages an
independent remuneration consultant The salary of
the executive director, which is described at
paragraph 10 below, 1s reviewed annually by the
remuneration committee

The managmng director also recewed non-
pensionable cash payments in the form of a car
allowance, pension allowance as detailed in
paragraph 6 and a payment in leu of private health
cover {she 1s not a2 member of the group's scheme)
This 15 included within salary/fees at paragraph 10
Non-cash benefits include )ife insurance cover

2 General bonus scheme
This 15 payable to all eligible staff but not to the
managing director

A cash payment will be made in March 2010 in
respect of performance of the independent fiduciary
services businesses in 2009 The amount of the
payment Is not guaranteed from year to year and 15
calculated by reference to a number of factors
relating to the independent fiduciary services
businesses, including profitability and the growth in
profits The bonus 1s paid as a percentage of basic
salary (normally expected to be between 5 and
15%), and all qualfying employees receve a bonus
calculated at the same percentage In 2010, the
general bonus scheme payment will be 7 0% of
basic salary There are no perfcrmance condibons
specific to any mdividual m order to qualfy for
receipt of a general bonus payment, although
certain length of service and qualification conditions
do apply Entitlemnent to the payment will be
withdrawn if the participant 1s not employed as at
24 March 2010 Participants are entitled to place all
or part of therr general bonus scheme payment into
a HMRC approved Share Incentive Plan
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3 Senior executive discretionary bonus scheme
This 15 payable to a number of semor executives,
including the managing director

In assessing what bonus or incenbive payment
should be awarded, account 1s taken of any factors
that the remuneration committee reasonably
consider appropnate, including the financial
performance and position of the group, the
performance of the individual and the performance
of the ndwidual’s department The board believes
it 1s inappropriate to publish any indvidual's
performance conditions as these relate to the
success of the independent fiduciary services
business, and such publkcahon may compromise
the commercial competitiveness of the business
There 1s no contractual entitlement that says an
incentive payment must be paid in any given year
Entilement 1s normally lost if, on the date that
incentive payments are paid, a participant 1s no
longer employed by the group, or either the
participant or the group has served notice to
termmate employment Incentive payments are
not taken into account n calculating pension
contributions The discretionary bonus payable n
2010 to Mrs Banszky in respect of 2009 will be
£130,500 (2008 £130,667) Up to the allowable
lrit, her bonus in respect of 2009 and payable In
2010 will be ehgible to be placed in the
Corporation’s Share Incentive Plan

The Corporation’s bonus arrangements are as
follows Ehgible execulives can receive a total
bonus, which except in exceptional circumstances 1s
unhkely to exceed 75% of salary The total bonus
includes the general benus scheme, the semor
executive discretionary bonus scheme and any
awards made under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan
The purpose of the Deferred Share Bonus Plan,
under which shares awarded as bonus do not vest
for three years, 15 to incentivise and retain staff
deemed key to the future of the business Itis
expected that awards made under the Deferred
Share Bonus Plan will make up at least one-third of
the total bonus recevable by the participant
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30 Remuneration report

continued

At its discretion, the remuneration committee may
make awards of shares each year under the Plan to
executives No executive has a contractual
entitlernent to an award, and the committee 1s not
obliged to make an award to any indwdual n any
year Shares are purchased in the open market up
to the amount of the award and held in trust by a
Law Debenture subsidiary The shares are released
to the executive on the third anniversary of grant of
the award and are taxable at the executive's
margmal rate of mcome tax on receipt Entitlement
to the award s lost if the executive gives notice to
resign, or 15 put on notice of termination, before the
award release date Dwdend nghts and voting nights
on shares held by the trustee pending release to
relevant executives are waved The committee
made awards of deferred bonus shares to the
executve director {details of which are at paragraph
14) and 48 key members of the executive on

2 March 2009 Subject to ehgibility, the shares waill
be released to award holders on 2 March 2012

The remunerabion committee has agreed an award
of shares to the value of £65,250, under the plan
to Mrs Banszky in respect of 2009, which will be
purchased in March 2010 and will be released in
March 2013

Non-executive directors are not entitled to be
parhicipants

4 Save as you earn ('SAYE') sharesave plan
2002 {‘the Scheme’)

Subject to elgibhity conditions concerning length of
service, the executive director (tn common with afl
of the members of staff) 1s entifled to participate

In the Corporation's SAYE Scheme Details of her
participation in the Scheme appear at paragraph 13

The Scheme 1s approved by HMRC under paragraph
1, Schedule 9 Income and Corporation Taxes Act
1988 Eligible participants are entifed to make
monthly savings direct from post tax pay, with a
guaranteed tax-ree return after five years The
amount to be saved can be up to a maximum
aggregate of £250 per month On joning the
scheme, savers are given an option to acquire
shares in the Corporation at the end of the five year
saving period, at a pnce fixed at the beginning of the
saving period The fixed price 1s the net asset value
per ordinary share on the date when ehgible
participants are invited to join the plan
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At the end of the five year saving peniod, participants
recewe a tax free bonus as stipulated by HMRC At
the end of a saving period, participants may choose
to apply the amount saved to exercise the oplions
over the shares nobfied at the outset of the saving
percd, or they may choose to relinquish their options
in favour of recening a cash repayment of all of therr
contnbutions, plus the bonus

Mrs Banszky participated in the 2009 invitation,
contributing £250 per month, having lapsed her
2008 plan earler in the year

5 Executive share options (discontinued m 2005)
A summary of executive share options granted in
previous years to the executive director 15 set out
at paragraph 12 Detalls of an exercise of options
by the executive director during 2009 appear at
paragraph 12 Since the year end she has made a
further exercise and at the date of this report, she
has no options outstanding

6 Penstons prowvision

Mrs Banszky was a member of the group’s funded
contributory, HMRC approved, final salary
cccupational scheme until 31 March 2006 Details
of her memberstup of the scheme are contamned in
the table at paragraph 11 Pursuant to her sernce
contract, since ‘eaving the scheme the managing
director has receved 20% of base salary as
compensation This amount 15 paid monthly in
arrears accruing from day to day after the
deduction of income tax and nabonal insurance

From 1 April 2009, all future pension benefits
accrue at 1/80ths (prewiously 1/60ths for some
ehigible employees) wath a salary cap of £40,000
for accrual purposes Employees earming more
than the cap recewe a cash sum which they may
invest in a separate money purchase scheme
These changes have transferred some of the
mortality and smvestment risks to employees, which
i turn has reduced the nsk to the Corporation of
prowding a final salary scheme
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7 Service contracts
Details of the executive director's service contract
are as follows

Date of Contract  Notice Penod

C ) Banszky 9 November 2001 6 months

Her employment 15 not for a fixed term There are
no contractuat prowisions for compensaton payable
upon early termination {with notice} of the contract
There Is an enbllement to recewve salary and
benefits during the period of nobice, which may be
paid ‘In hieu' of all or part of any period of notice
There are no entitlements to payments of any sortir
the event that for cause the executive director’s
employment 15 summarly termmated

In the event that the managing director (s given
notice of termination of employment within twelve
months of any change in control of the company,
she must be given not less than twelve months’
written notice, and the same arrangements for
recewing salary and benefits during this period
{inctudmg payments ‘in leu’} also apply as descnbed
above

8 Remuneraton of non-executive directors
The non-executive directors were paid fees for ther
services (n 2009, as set out in paragraph 10 They
may also reclaim travelling expenses

The fees are reviewed by the board, on adwice
from the executive drector, who from time to

tme undertakes comparative studies, using an
independent remuneration consuftant, to ensure
that the Corporation's fee levels are consistent
with the marketplace The board concluded in
December 2008 and again in December 2009 that
it would not be appropnate to increase fees m the
current economic cimate Al directors are
expected to attend all meetings of the board and
of any committee of which they are a member,
barnng unforeseen circumstances The attendance
record of the non-executive directors at meetings
of the Corporation's board and committees 15 set
out at page 23 as part of the corporate
governance report
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Each noneexecutive director 1s appanted for an
indefinite term, subject to penodic re-elechion by the
shareholders m accordance with the Articles of
Association There are no prowisions in any of the
nonexecutive directors’ letters of appomtment for
compensation payable on early termnation of the
directorship

—— Law Debenture share price total return, assuming the
investment of £1,000 on 31 December 2004 and
renvestment of all ddends (excluding dealing expenses)

—— FTSE AltShare Index total return assurming notional
imvestment of £1,000 mto the mndex on 31 December 2004
and the remvestmert of all sncome (excluding dealing
expenses)

Notes

1 The graph shows the total shargholder return of a nommnal
halding of £1,000 of Law Debenture’s shares measured
agamnst the total sharehalder return of a nominal holding of
£1,000 irvested 1n the FTSE All-Share Index over a five
year period

2 Dmdends have been remnvested
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32 Remuneration report

continued

10 Directors' emoluments 2009 (audtted}

Benefits Total Total

Total Total other than receivable recevable

salary/fees bonus in cash for 2009 for 2008

i £ £ £ £

C J Banszky 359,584 168,018 841 528,443 510,780

AC Cates 55,000 - - 55,000 55,000

D CP McDougall 68,000 - - 68,000 68,000

R J Williams 8,750 - - 8,750 32,500

JA Kay 42,792 - - 42,792 32,500

C Smith 34,375 - - 34,375 -
Notes

1 Total salary/tees for Mrs Banszky comprises basic salary plus nonpensionable cash allowances of £69,584 as sef out in

paragraphs 1 and 6

2 Total bonus for Mrs Banszky compnses the discretionary bonus payable in respect of 2009 and the deferred shares vesting in

2009 as set out m paragraphs 3 and 14

3 No compensation or fee was pad to any indmdual who had previously been a director
4 Mr Wilkams retired at the AGM on 7 Aprit 2009, Mr Smith was appomnted as a drector on 1 March 2009

11 Annual penston entitlements upon reaching retirement age (audited)

Accumulated
total accrued Transfer Transfer
Increase in penston at  valueasat  value as at Ingrease
accrued pension 31 December 31 December 31 December In transfer
during 2009 2009 2008 2009 value
£ pa £ pa £000 £000 1000
C J Banszky 395 8,294 141 147 6
Notes

1 The pension entitlernent shown 15 that wihich would be paid annually on retrement based on sernce 10 31 December 2009
2 Theincrease in accrued pension durng the year includes any ncrease for inflation

3 The transfer value has been caiculated on the basis of actuanal adwice in accordance with Actuanal Guidance Note GN11
4 No previous directors are, or have been, in receipt of any excess retirement benefits

5 Mrs Banszky ceased to be a member of the scheme from 31 March 2006

12 Executive share option scheme {audited)

Interest as at Interest as at

31 December Granted  Exertised 31 December Exercise Earliest Latest
2008 n 2009 n 2009 2009 pnce exercise exercise

C J Banszky
2002 17,025 - 17,025 - 2115 020807 010810
2003 38,596 - 38,596 - 1744p 280308 270811
2004 31,364 - - 31,364 2282p 020307 010312

No options expired unexercised i the year, and none of the terms and conditions relating to any of the
options were varied during the year

The market price at the beginming of the year was 223 bp the highest pnce during the year was 288 41p the
lowest price was 175 75p The market value at the date of exercise of the options was 278 5p, giving a gan
of £51,585 which was subject to PAYE and NI
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13 Save as you earn share save plan [audited)

interest as at lnterest Market price Interest as at
31 December  acqured Exercise at mwtation Lapsed 31 December Earbiest Latest
2008 02009 price date n 2009 2009 exarcise exercise
C J Banszky 5179 - 31424p 32800p 5179 - 010813 310114
- 7,399 21150p 24725 - 7,399 010814 310115

None of the terms and conditions relating to any of the options held under this scheme was vaned dunng

the year

14 Deferred share bonus plan {audited)

nterast

Interest at [vested)/ Intarest at

31 December acquired Purchase 31 December Daie shares
2008 in 2009 prce 2009  to be released

C J Banszky
2006 18,806 (18,806) 319 04p - -
2007 18,293 - 355 32p 18,293 080310
2008 (January) 1,993 - 334 50p 1993 250111
2008 (March) 24,874 - 337 71p 24874 030311
2009 - 33,191 196 B4p 33,191 020312

The shares were purchased in the open market and are held under trust by & Law Debenture subsidiary unbi

the release date

Mrs Banszky receved her allgcation of 18,806 deferred shares 1ssued in 2006 on 1 March 2009, and
continues to hold them The price at vesting was 199 50p The value of the shares at vesting I1s included
in directors’ remuneration and PAYE and N was paid on that basis The market value of the shares at

31 December 2009 was 284 50p

15 Aggregate directors' remuneration

2009 2008

. £ £

Emoluments 737,360 698,780
Gain on exercise of share ophons 51,585 -
788,945 698,780
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Independent auditor’s report

to the members of The Law Debenture Corporation pl ¢

We have audited the financial statements of The Law
Debenture Corporation p I ¢ for the year ended

31 December 2009 which compnse the group and
Corporation statements of financial position, the
group income statement, the group and Corporation
statement of comprehensive income, the group and
Corporation statements of cash flow, the group and
Corporation statements of changes i equity and the
related notes The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation i1s applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(iFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as
regards the parent company financial statements,
as appled in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibtlity
to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibiliies of directors and
auditors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’
responsibilties, the directors are responsible for the
preparabion of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they gwe a true and far view Our
responsibility 15 to audit the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for
Auditors

The Law Debenture Corporaton pl ¢

Scope of the audnt of the financial statements
An audit involves obtatning evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropnate to the group's
and the parent company's circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financtal statements

Opnion on financial statements
In our cpimon

* the financial statements gve a true and fair view
of the state of the group's and the parent
company’s affars as at 31 December 2009 and
of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

« the group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Umon,

= the parent company financia! statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs
as adopted by the European Union and as apphed
in accordance with the provisions of the
Compamies Act 2006, and

* the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the
Compames Act 2006 and, as regards the group
financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006
In our opimon

* the part of the directors’ remuneration report to
be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

» the mformation given in the directors' report for
the financial year for which the financial
staternents are prepared Is consistent with the
financial statements
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Matters on which we are required to report
by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to
report to you If, 0 our opmion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept
by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been receved from branches
not wisited by us, or

parent company financial statements and the part
of the directors’ remuneration report to be
audited are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns, or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remunerabion
specified by law are not made, or

we have not receved all the mformation and
explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

« the directors’ statement, set out on page 26, in
relation to going concern, and

« the part of the corporate governance staterment
relating to the company’s comphance with the
nine prowisions of the June 2008 Combined Code
specified for our review

T o
Ne On (semor statutory auditor)

For and on behalf of BDO LLP, statutory auditor
London

United Kingdom

22 February 2010

BDO LLP s a limited habdity partnership registered i England
and Wales {with registered number 0C305127}
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36 Group income statement

for the year ended 31 December

2009 2008
Revenue Capital Total* Revenue Capital Total
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
UK dividends 9,097 - 9,097 12,738 - 12,738
UK special dwidends 29 - 29 15 - 15
Overseas dividends 1,777 - 1,777 2,248 - 2,248
Overseas special dvidends 56 - 56 20 - 20
Interest from secunties 911 - 911 180 - 180
11,870 - 11,870 15,201 - 15,201
Interest income 5 266 - 266 1,461 - 1,461
Independent fiduciary services fees 34,589 - 34,589 32,080 - 32,090
Other income 587 - 587 112 - 112
Total ncome 47 312 - 47,312 48,864 - 48,864
Net gain/lloss) on mvestments held
at far value through profit or loss 2 - 73,856 73,856 - (141,314) (141,314)
Gross income and capital gains/{losses) 47,312 73,856 121,168 48864  (141,314) (92.450)
Cost of sales (11,521} - {11,521) (9,431} - (9,431)
Adminustrative expenses 3 (15,840} (283} {16,123) (16,449) 77 (16,372)
Operating profit/{loss) 19,951 73,573 93,524 22,984 {141,237) (118,253)
Finance costs
Interest payable 5 {2,451) - {2,451) (2,456} - (2,456)
Profit/{loss) before taxation 6 17,500 73,573 91,073 20,528 (141,237 (120,709
Taxation 7 (2,243) - {2,243) (2,280 - (2,280
Profit/(loss) for year 6 15,257 73,573 88,830 18,248  (141,237) (122,989)
Return/{loss) per ordinary share (pence} 9 1302 6277 7579 1558 {120 59) (105 01)
Diluted return/loss) per ordinary share [pence} 9 1301 6273 7574 15 58 {120 59} (105 01)
* See note 1
Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December
2009 2008
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Caprtal Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Group
Profit/{loss) for the year 15,257 73,573 88,830 18,248  (141,237) {122,989}
Foreign exchange on translation
of foreign operations - (393) {393) - 1,117 1,117
Taxation on foreign exchange - 27 27 - (70) (70
Pension actuarial gains/{losses} 2,279 - 2,279 6,032} - {6,032}
Taxation on pension {638) - {638) 1,605 - 1,605
Total comprehensive income/[loss}
for the year 16,898 73,207 90,105 13,821 {140,190) (126,369
Corporation
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year 14,023 73,573 87,596 15602  (141,237)  (125,635)

The Law Debenture Corporatonpl ¢
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 December

Group Corporation
2009 2008 2009 2008
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Non current assets
Goodwill 10 2,187 3,181 - -
Property, plant and equipment 11 254 477 - -
Other intangible assets 12 127 83 - -
Investments held at far value through profit or loss 13 373,066 288,566 372,801 288,361
nvestments in subsidiary undertakings 13 - - 58 58
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings - - 60,000 60,000
Deferred tax assets 7 1,083 1,953 - -
Total non current assets 376,717 294,260 432,859 348,419
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 14 3,135 3461 155 239
Other accrued income and prepaid expenses $,059 4,126 1,700 986
Corporation tax receivable 221 239 - -
Other taxatron mcluding social security - 455 - 455
Cash and cash equivalents 15 18,688 31,590 7,238 20,297
Total current assets 27,103 39,871 9,093 21,977
Total assets 403,820 334,131 441,952 370,39

Current habilities
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 49,562 51,042
Trade and other payables 16 7,893 8,491 135 179

Short term borrowings 20 76 85 - -
Corporation tax payable 1,119 1,782 747 1,059
Other taxation including social secunty 395 416 262 233
Deferred income 4,303 4,019 o 1} ‘ ’MHE
Total current kabilities _ 13,78§ __111_,7_%3 _EOJU 52,524
Non current hiabilities and deferred income

Long term borrowings 20 39,338 39,311 - -
Retirement benefit obligations 23 1,928 5,478 - -
Deferred income 6,366 7,226 234 244
Contingent purchase consideration - 900 - -
Total non current abilities 47,632 52,915 234 244
Total net assets 342,402 266,423 391,001 317,628
Equity

Called up share capital 17 5,903 5,902 5,903 5,902
Share premium 8,038 7,971 8,038 1,971
Capital redemption 8 8 8 8
Share based payments 201 201 - -
Own shares {2,040} (2,137} - -
Capital reserves 18 300,336 226,763 360,554 286,981
Retained earnings 29,536 26,929 16,498 16,766
Translation reserve 420 786 - -
Total equity 342,402 266,423 391,001 317,628

Approved and authonsed for issue by the board on 22 February 2010 and signed on its behalf by

D C.P. McDougall Charman W ﬂ AM/(/\
C J Banszky Managing drector OD f l 5 J (BOJJZ V,
—_—
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Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December

Share Share
capital premium
£000 £000

Group
Balance at 1 January 2008 5,888 7477
Net loss - -

Foreign exchange {net of tax) - -
Actuanal loss on pension scheme (net of tax) - -

Total comprehensive {loss) - -
Issue of shares 14 494
Dividend relating to 2007 - -
Dividend relating to 2008 - -
Share based payment - -
Movement in own shares - -

Total equity at 31 December 2008 5,902 7,971
Balance at 1 January 2009 5,902 7,971
Net profit - -

Foreign exchange {net of tax} - -
Actuarial gain on pension scheme (net of tax) - -

Total comprehenswve income - -
Issue of shares 1 67
Dividend relating to 2008 - -
Dividend relating to 2009 - -
Movement in own shares - -

Total equity at 31 December 2009 5,903 8,038

Share Share
capital premium
i £000 £000

Corporation
Equity at 1 January 2008 5,888 1477
Total comprehensive {loss) - -
Issue of shares 14 494
Dnsdend relating to 2007 - -
Dwvidend relating to 2008 - -
Total equrty at 31 December 2008 5,902 7,971
Equity at 1 January 2009 5,902 7,971
Total comprehensive income - -
Issue of shares 1 67
Dmdend relating to 2008 - -
Dnadend relating to 2005 - -
Total equity at 31 December 2009 5,903 8,038

Capital reserves compnses realised and unrealised gams/llosses) on nvestments held at fair value through profit or loss {see note 18)
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Own Capital Share based Translation Capital Retained
shares redemption payments reserve reserves earnings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
; (1,603 8 195 (261) 368,000 27,386 407,090
- - - - (141,237} 18,248 (122,989
- - - 1,047 - - 1,047
~ - - - - - (4,427) (4,427)
- - - 1,047 (141,237} 13,821 {126,369)
- - - - - - 508
- - - - - {9,353) {9,353)
- - - - - {4,925) {4,925)
- - 6 - - - 6
(534) - - = - - {534)
(2,137 8 201 786 226,763 26,929 266,423
i {2,137} 8 201 786 226,763 26,929 266,423
- - - - 73,573 15,257 88,830
- - - {366 - - {366)
- - - - - 1,641 1,641 |
- - - {366) 73573 16,898 90,105 |
- - - - - - 68
- - - - - (9,368} {9,368)
- - - - - (4,923) {4,923)
~ 97 - - - - - 97
{2,040) 8 201 420 300,336 29,536 342,402
Own Capital Share based Transglation Capital Retained
shares redemption payments reserve reserves earnings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
- 8 - - 428218 15,442 457,033 ‘
- - - - {141,237) 15,602 (125,635}
- - - - - - 508
- - - - - (9,353 {9,353)
- - - - - (4,925) (4,925)
- 8 - - 286,981 16,766 317.628
- 8 - - 286,981 16,766 317,628
- - - - 73,573 14,023 87,596
- - - - - - 68
- - - - - {9,368) (9,368)
- - - - - {4,923) (4,923)
- 8 - - 360,554 16,498 391,001
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40 Statements of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December

Group Corporation
2009 2008 2009 2008
£000 £000 . £000 £000

Operating activities
Operating profit/lioss) before interest payable and taxation 93,524 (118,253) 91,344 (121,016}
(Gans)losses on investments {73,573) 141,772 (73,573} 141,772
Foreign exchange 94 (248) - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 271 286 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 61 31 - -
Gain on curtailment of pension benefits {694} - - -
Share based payments - 6 - -
{increase) in recevables {152} (29) {175) (538)
{Decrease) in payables {1,168) (551) {25) (927)
Income gam on OEICS (89) (336) (89) {336)
UK and overseas withholding tax deducted at source {158) (212) {158) (212)
Normal pension contributions in excess of cost {577) (811) - -
Cash generated from operating activities 17,539 21,655 17,324 18,743
Taxation (2,471) (2,463) {1,241) (914}
Interest paid {2,451) (2,456) {2,661) {3,259}
Operating cash flow 12,617 7 16,73§ 1_3.}32 14,570
Investing activities
Acquistion of property, plant and equipment {48) (88} - -
Expenditure on intangible assets {105) {68} - -
Purchase of investments {82,236} (81,112  (82,176) (81,112)
Sale of investments 71,475 74,208 71,475 74,195
Cash flow from mvesting activities {10,914) (7,060 {10,701) {6,917)
Financing actvities
Subsidiary undertakings - - {1,480) 2,732
Dwidends pad (14,291) (14,278} (14,291} (14,278)
Proceeds of increase in share capital 68 508 68 508
Purchase of own shares 97 (534) - -
Net cash flow from financing activities _ m_("1f4.1_26| (14,304 (15,703) (11,038}
Net decrease in ¢ash and cash equivalents {12,423) {4,628) (12,982) {3,385)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of penod 31,505 34,620 20,297 23,286
Foreign exchange {losses)/gains on ¢ash and cash equivalents {470) 1,513 (77) 396
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 18,612 31,505 7,238 20,297
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash and cash equivalents 18,688 31,590 7,238 20,297
Bank overdrafts (76) (85) - -

18612 31,505 7,238 20,297
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Notes to the accounts

for the year ended 31 December 2009

Summary of significant accounting policies

General Information

The Law Debenture Corporation pt ¢ 1s a public company incorporated m the United Kingdom The address of the registered office 1s
given on page 16 The group's operations and its principal actvities are as an investment trust and the provider of independent
fiduciary services

The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling thousands because that 1s the currency of the pnmary econormic
emvircnment in which the group operates

Basis of preparation
The financia! statements of The Law Debenture Corporation p | ¢ have been prepared in accordance with Internatronal Financial
Reportng Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union

The financial statements have been prepared under the mstoncal cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of hsted instruments
held at far value through profit or loss Where presentational guidance set out in the Statement of Recommended Practice Financial
Staternents of Investment Trust Companies, January 2009 (SORP) s consistent with the requirements of IFRS, the directors have
sought to prepare the financial statements on a basis compliant with the recommendations of the SORP

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements necessanly requires the exercise of judgement both in application of accounting polcies
which are set out below and in the selection of assumptions used in the calculation of estimates These estimates and judgements
are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are continually evaluated based on mstoncal experience and other factors However, actual
results may differ from these estimates The most significantly affected components of the financial staterments and associated
cribical judgements 1s as follows

Defined benefit scheme

The estimation of the expected cash flows used n the calculation of the defined benefit scheme’s liabilbies includes a number of
assumptions around mortality, discount rates, inflation rates apphcable to defined benefits and the average expected service les of
the employees (see note 23) The directors have considered the sensitvity to the mortality assumption and determined that if life
expectancy were 10 increase by one year then the deficit of the scheme would increase by £717,000 The directors take advice from
the Scheme Actuary when selecting these assumptions and when selecting the discount rate used to calculate the defined benefit
scheme liabilites

New IFRSs and interpretations adopted n the financial statements

IS 1 (as revised in 2007) 'Presentation of financial statements' has troduced terminology changes lincluding rewised titles for the
financial statements) and changes n the format and content of the financial statements The amendments do not have a financial
impact for the group The group has presented income and expense in two statements, an income statement and a statement of
comprehensive income IFRS 8 ‘Operating segments’ has introduced changes in the way operating segments are determined The
amendments do not have a financial or presentational impact for the group Improving disclosures about financial instruments
{Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments’) expands the disclosures required in respect of fair value measurement and lquidity
nsk The amendments do not have a financial impact for the group None of the other standards or interpretations introduced from
1 January 2009 has had a matenal impact on the financial statements

New IFRSs and interpretations not yet adopted in the financial statements

IFRS 3 (as rewised in 2008) ‘Business combinations’ provides new guidance on the acquisthon and disposal of subsidiaries and 1s
applicable to accounting penods beginming on or after 1 July 2009 The cost of an acquisition will comprise only consideration for
equity, other related costs will be expensed immediately The accounting for contingent consideration 1s amended so that
adjustments made subsequent to the acquisition, in certain circumstances, may be recognised i profit or loss These changes will
affect the group’s accounting for future acquisitons and disposals No impact s expected from any other standards or interpretations
which have been endorsed by the European Umon and are available for early adoption, but which have not been adopted

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of The Law Debenture Corporation p I ¢ and entites
controlled by the Corporation (its subsidiaries) made up to the end of the financial pertod Control 1s achieved where the Corporation
has the power to govern the financial and aperating policies of an nvestee entity so as to obtam benefits from its actmities

The assets, liablities and contingent Irabiliies of a subsidiary are measured at ther fair values at the date of acquisition Any excess
consideration over the fair values of the :dentifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill

Intercompany transactions, balances and unreahsed gains on transactions between group companies are ehminated The financial
statements of subsidiaries are adjusted, where necessary, to ensure the accounting policies used are consistent with those adopted
by the group
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Notes to the accounts

continued

Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Presentation of income statement and statement of comprehensive income

In order to better reflect the activities of an investment trust company and in accordance with the SORP, supplementary information
which analyses the income statement and statement of comprehensive income between items of a revenue and capital nature has
been presented in accordance with the Corporation’s status as a UK investment company under Sechon 833 of the Companies Act
2006, net capital returns may not be distnbuted by way of dwidend Additionally, the net revenue 1s the measure the drrectors believe
appropriate In assessing the group's comphiance with certain requirements set out In Section 842 Income and Corporation Taxes Act
1988 As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Corporation has not presented its own income statement

Segment reporting

Operating segments ara components of an entity about which separate financial informatian 1s available that 15 evaluated regulary by
the directors in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance The group compnises two operating segments, the
investment trust and ndependent fiduciary services, this is consistent with internal reporting  The overseas offices represent less than
10% of the assets and operations and consequently no separate geographical segment information 1 prowided

Foreign currencies
Transactions recorded in foresgn currencies are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the date of the transaction

Assets and habilibes denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into sterling at the exchange rate
ruling at that date Gains and losses on translation are included n net profit or loss for the pertod, however exchange gains or losses
on investments held at farr value through profit and loss are included as part of their farr value gain or loss

The assets and liabiities of overseas subsichanes are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Income and
expenses of overseas subsidiaries are translated at the average exchange rates for the peniod Exchange differences ansing from the
translation of net nvestment in foreign subsidiaries are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and transferred to the
group's translation reserve

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation Historical cost includes expenditure that 1s directly
attributable to the acguisiion of the item Depreciation 1s calculated using the straightfine method to allocate the cost over the
assets' estmated useful lives as follows

Leasehold mprovements over the remaining lease penod
Office furniture and equipment 3-10 years

Intangible assets

Computer software

Computer software 1s caprtalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software These costs
are amortised over therr estimated useful ves of between three and five years

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisihon over the group's interest in the fair vatue of the
identifiable assets and habilihies of a subsidiary at the date of acquisihion Goodwill 1s intbially recognised as an asset at cost and 1s
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated imparment losses Goodwill which 1s recognised as an asset s reviewed for
imparment at least annually Any impairment would be recogrised in profit or loss and 1s not subsequently reversed

Impairment of assets

An impairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount Assets are
reviewed on a regular basis and tested for imparrment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable

Financial instruments

Investments

Listed nvestments, which compnse the investment trust portfolio, have been designated as nvestments held at fair value through
profit or loss Purchases and sales of hsted nvestments are recognised on trade date, the date on which the group commits to
purchase or sell the nvestment Investments are inibially recogmsed at fair value and transaction costs are expensed as incurred
Gans and losses ansing from listed nvestments, as assets at far value through profit or loss, are included 0 the ncome statement
in the period in which they arise

The fair value of isted investments 15 based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date The quoted market price used 15 the
bid price

Gans and losses on investments and direct transaction costs are analysed within the income statement as capital All other costs of
the nvestment trust are treated as revenue items
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Trade recewvables
Trade recevables do not carry any mterest and are stated at thewr nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts

Trade payabies
Trade payables are not interest beanng and are stated at ther nomnal value

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash i hand, deposits held with banks, other short term highly hquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised mtially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred The difference between the proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value 15 recognised in the income statement over the term of the borrowings using the effective
interest method, so as to generate a constant rate of return on the amount outstanding

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity The ordinary shares of the Corporation which have been purchased by the Employee Share
Ownership Trust to provide share based payments to employees are valued at cost and deducted from equity

Taxation

Current tax 15 based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it
excludes items of mcome or expense which are either never taxable or deductible or are taxable or deductible in other periods The
group's hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the year end date

Deferred income tax ts provided i full, using the habiity method, on temparary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets
and kablities and their carrying amounts in the consclidated financial statements

Deferred tax liabilities are recogmised for all taxabte femporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it 15 probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utihsed

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences anising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each year end date and reduced to the extent that 1t 15 no longer prabable
that sufficient taxable profits will be avallable to recover the asset Delerred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the peniod when the liability 15 expected to be setifed or the asset 1s expected to be realised based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substanbvely enacted at the year end date

Revenue recognition |
Dradend income
Dividend mcome from investments 1s recognised when the shareholders' nghts to receve payment have been established

Interest income
Interest income Is accrued on a time basis using the effective interest rate apphcable

Sales of services

Revenue comprises the fair value of the sales of services net of value added tax and after eliminating sales within the group Sales of
services are recogmised in the accounting period i which the services are rendered, provided that the outcome of the transaction
can be estmated rellably Where the outcome of a transaction can be estimated rehably, sales are assessed on the basis of the
actual services prowided as a proportion of the total services to be prowided

Where payments are recerved mn advance for trusteeships which extend beyond the penod end then the amount relating to future
periads 15 deferred using an appropriate discount rate

Employee benefits

Pension costs

The group operates a defined benefit pension plan The cost of providing benefits 1 determined using the project umit credit method,
with Independent actuanial calcutations being carried out at each year end date Actuanal gamns and losses are recognised in full in

the pertod 1n which they occur through other comprehensive income Past service cost 15 recogmsed mmediately to the extent that
benefits are already vested, and otherwise amorbsed on a straightHine basis over the average penod untd the benefits become vested

The hiabilty recogmsed in the statement of financial position in respect of the defined benefit plan 1s the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the year end date less the far value of the plan assets, together with adustments for unrecognised past service costs
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Notes to the accounts

continued

Summary of sigmficant accounting policies continued

Bonus schemes
The group recognises prowisions in respect of its bonus schemes when contractually obliged or when there 15 a past practice that has
created a constructive abligation

Share based plans
The group has awarded share options to executives and the group makes equity based awards to executives

In accordance with the transitional prowisions for the implementation of the standard, the group has applied the requirements of
IFRS 2 Share-based Payments to all grants of equity instruments made after 7 Novermber 2002

Share-based payments are measured at farr value at the date of grant using an appropriate option valuation technique, which 1s
expensed on a straightdine basis over the vesting penod, based on the group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest

Reserves
A description of each of the reserves follows

Share premium
This reserve represents the difference between the 1ssue price of shares and the nominal value of shares at the date of issue, net of
related 1ssue costs

Capital redemption
This reserve was created on the cancellabon and repayment of the company's share capital

Share based payments
This reserve represents the fair value cost of share based payments

Own shares
This represents the cost of shares purchased by the ESOT

Capital reserves
The following are dealt with through this reserve

+ Gans and losses on realisation of investments,
* Changes in farr value investments which are readily convertible to cash, and

e Amounts by which other assets and habilibes valued at far value differ from their book value

Retaned earnings
Nat revenue profits and losses of the Corporation and its substdianes and the fair value costs of share based payments which are
revenue in nature are dealt with in this reserve

Translation reserve
This reserve Is used to record exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries

Leases

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases Payments made
under operating leases, net of ncentives recewved from the lessor, are charged to the income statement on a straightine basis over
the penod of the lease

Dindend distribution
Didend distnbution to the Corporation’s shareholders 1s recognised as a hiabifity in the financial statements in the peniod in which the
dmvidends are approved by shareholders
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2 Total capital gains/{losses) from investments

2009 2008

£000_ 5000

Realised {losses)/gans based on historical cost {49} 661
Amounts recognised as unrealised \n previous years 18,115 (28,601}
Realised gains/losses) based on carrying value at previous year end date 18,066 (27,940}
Unrealised gains/losses) on investments 55,879 {113,038}
73,945 (140,978}
Transfers to revenue 89} {336)

73,856  (141,314)

Admenistrative expenses

2009 2008

£000 £000
Administrative expenses include
Salaries and directors' fees 9,431 9,402
Socizl secunty costs 998 1,003
Other pension costs (55) 729
Investment management fee 751 945
VAT on investment management fees {143) (425)
Depreciation — property, plant and equipment 271 286
Amortisation - intangible assets 61 31
Operating leases - land and buildings 1,267 1,247
Foreign exchange {29) {134)
Auditors’ remuneration 132 129

Cther pension costs is net of the gan on curtalment of pension benefits during the year of £694,000, (see note 23) During the year,
the group employed an average of 114 stalf (2008 115) All staff are engaged in the prowision of independent fiduciary services
The Corparation has no employees

Details of the terms of the mvestment management agreement are provided on page 21 of the directors’ report

Admunistrative expenses charged to capital are transaction costs and foreign exchange differences on the purchase of investments
held at fair value through profit or loss

A more detaled analysis of the auditors’ remuneration on a worldwide basis 1s provided below

2009 2008
£000 £000
Audit services
- fees payable to the Corporaton’s audttors for the audit of its financial statements 123 120
- audit related regulatory 4 4
Tax services 5 5
Other services - _
132 129

* Including the Corparation £25,000 (2008 £25,000)

These figures do not include fees receivable by the auditors for work undertaken by them in connection with the audits of special
purpose vehicles admimstered by the group as pant of its independent fiduciary services business

A description of the work of the audit commuttee 15 set out in the corporate governance report on page 25 and mcludes an
explanation of how auditor objectmty and independence 1s safeguarded when non-audit serwices are provided by the auditors
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Notes to the accounts

continued

Remuneration of directors

2009 2008
£000 £000
Directors’ emoluments, which compnse the following, are included in admemistrative expenses
Non-executive directors’ fees 208 188
Management remuneration 528 511
737 699

The emoluments of the tughest paid director totalled £528,000 (2008 £511,000) and included employer penston contributions of
£ nif (2008 nil) and amounts under the terms of the employee bonus plans of £168,000 (2008 £163,0000 Her accrued pension
entittement 15 as follows

2009
e N £000
Increase dunng 2009 ncluding inflation increase -
Accumnulated total accrued pension at 31 December 2009 8
Transfer value of increase in accrued pension based on actuanal advice
Annual pension entittements shown above are based upon service up to 31 December 2009 and do not include any Additional
Voluntary Contribulions There are no other directors for whom there 1s an accrued pension enhtlement
Detalls of options held and the emoluments of each director are shown m the remuneration report starting on page 28
Interest
2009 2008
e £_000 _ _£E)00
Interest income
Interest on bank deposits 117 582
Returns on money market funds 180 687
Returns on pension scheme {net) (31) 192
266 1,461
Interest payable
Interest on debenture stock 2,450 2.450
Interest on bank overdrafts 1 6
2,451 2,456
Interest (net) (2,185) {995)
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6 Segmental analysis

Independent
Investment trust fiduciary services #TLtal
31 December 3! December 31 Decembher 31 December 31 December 31 December
2008 2009 2008 2008
£000 1000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue
Segment ncome 11,870 15,201 34,589 32,090 46,459 47,291
Other income 587 a3 - 19 587 112
Cost of sales - - (11,521) (9,431) {11,521) (5,431}
Administration costs {1,365) {1,254) (14,475) {15,195) {15,840) (16,449}
11,092 14,040 8,593 7,483 19,685 21,523
interest (net e f238n)  a9ea 162 949 - (2,185) (993)
Return, mcluding profit on ordinary activities
hefore taxation 8,745 12,096 8,755 8,432 17,500 20,528
Taxation {158) (110 {2,085} {2,170 {2,243) (2,280}
Return, including profit attributable to shareholders 8,587 11,986 6,670 6,262 15,257 18,248
Revenue return per ordinary share 733 10 23 569 5 3m5__ ______1_3_ 93“ _ ___1_5 58
Assets 381,952 310,396 21,868 23,735 403,820 334,131
Liabilibies {50,951} (52,768} (10,467) (1{9{91 ‘ _E}.t‘ll_i!} ) (57708_)
Total net assets 331,001 257,628 11,401 8,795 342,402 266,423
The capital element of the income statement 1s wholly attributable to the nvestment trust Detalls regarding the segments are
included on page 1 — Group summary and in note 1 — Segment reporting
Independent
Investment trust fiduciary services Total

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
5000 £000 £000 £000 £000 .'EOO__O
Other information
Capital expenditure . - 153 156 153 l?@
Depreciation - - 332 317 332 317
7 Taxation
2009 2008
£00C £000
Taxation based on revenue for the year comprises
UK Corporation tax at 28 0% {2008 28 5%) 1,535 1,998
Adjustments i respect of prior years (111) 13
1,424 2,011
Overseas tax
Current tax on income for the year 599 281
Total current tax charge 2,023 2,292
Deferred tax 220 (12}
2,243 2,280
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Notes to the accounts

continued

Taxation continued
Taxation
The charge for the year can be reconcied to the profit per the income statement as follows

2009 2008
£000 £000
Profit/lloss) before taxation 91,073 {120,709
Tax on ordinary activities at standard rate 28 0% {2008 28 5%) 25,500 (34,402) |
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 15 8
Higher rates of tax on overseas income 103 -
Non taxable capital (gains)/osses (20,680) 40,253
Tax credit on dwidend income {2,486} (3,438)
Adjustment 1n respect of prior penods {111} 13
Recovery of overseas tax {158) (213}
Losses an overseas companes for which no tax relief anses 42 75
Other differences 18 {16}
2,243 2,280

The group expects that a substanbal portion of its future income will continue to be in the form of UK dmdend recerpts and capital
gams, which constitute non-taxable ncome On this basis, the group tax charge 1s expected to reman significantly different to the 28%

standard UK rate
Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax labilities and assets recognised by the group and mavements thereon during the current and

prior reporting period

Deferred tax assets

Accelerated Retrement Other

tax benefit employee
depreciation chligations benefits Total
1000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 January 2008 190 77 65 332

Credit/[charge) to income 160 (148) - 12

Credit to other comprehensive income - 1,605 (8) 1,597

Foreign exchange 12 - - 12

At 1 January 2009 362 1,534 57 1,953

{Charge)/credit to \ncome 136 {356) - (220}

{Chargel/credit to other comprehensive income - (638) - (638}

Foreign exchange (12) - - (12)

At 31 December 2009 486 540 57 1,083 |
|
|
|
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Dnadends on ordinary shares

2009 2008
£000 £000
Dwndends on ordinary shares compnse the following
2009 Intenm 4 2p (2008 4 2p} 4,923 4,925
2908 Final 8 Op {2007 8 Cp) 9,368 9,353
Total for year 14,291 14,278
Proposed final dvidend for the year ended 31 December 2009 9,388

The proposed final dwvidend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the annual general meeting and has not been mcluded as a
liability in these financiar statements

Set out below 1s the total dwvdend payable in respect of the financial year, which is the basis on which the requirements of Section
842 Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 are considered

2009 2008
£000 £000
2009 Intenm 4 2p {2008 4 2p) 4,923 4,925
2009 Final 8 Op {2008 8 Op) 9,388 9,381

14,311 14,306

On this basis Law Debenture satisfies the requirements of Section 842 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988, as amended
by Section 117 Finance Act 1988, Section 55 Finance Act 1990 and Schedule 30 paragraph 2 Finance Act 1996 as an approved
Investment Trust Company

Dmdends have been waved n respect of the 786,604 shares owned by the Employee Share Ownership Trust {(ESOT') (see note 17)

Earnings per share from continuing operations

Revenue return 1s based on profits attnbutable of £15,257,000 (2008 £18,248,000)

Capital return per share 1s based on net capital gains for the year of £73,573,000 (2008 loss £141,237,000)
Total return per share 15 based on net gams for the year of £88,830,000 (2008 loss £122,989,000

The calculations of returns per share are based on 117,206,258 (2008 117,124,503} shares, bemg the weighted average number
of shares in 1ssue dunng the year after adjusting for shares owned by the ESOT In 2009 total, revenue and capital diluted returns per
share were calculated using 117,286,720 shares, being the diluted weighted average number of shares in 1ssue assuming exercise
of ophons at less than farr value In 2008 there was no difubon There were 147,568 (2008 153,371) antudilutive shares

Goodwill
2009 2008
£000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 3,181 4,185
Adjusiment to contingent consideration {900) {1,243)
Foreign exchange {94) 239
At 31 December 2,187 3,181

At 31 December 2009 the estimate of the contingent consideration relating to the acquisiion of subsidiary companies was reduced
to nil The goodwili Is identifiable with separate operating companies {Safecall Limited — £1,419,000 and Delaware Corporate
Services Inc - £768,000) At 31 December 2009 the goodwill in relation to the operating compamies was reviewed The review
assessed whether the carrying value of goodwill was supported by the net present value of future cash flows based on management
forecasts for 2010, assumed annual growth based on current expectations of 5% and 8% and a discount rate of 5% On this basis
the goodwill 15 not considered to be impared If the assumed annual growth for both operabing units were 5% then there would be an
imphed impairment of £154,000
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Notes to the accounts

continued

Property, plant and equipment

Group
L 2009 2008
Office Office
Leasehold furnture & Leasehold furnture &
improvements equpment Total improvements equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 777 924 1,701 777 825 1,602
Additions at cost - 48 48 - 88 88
Foreign exchange - - - - 11 11
At 31 December 777 972 1,749 777 924 1,701
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 503 721 1,224 347 589 336
Charge 157 114 271 156 130 286
Foreign exchange - - - - 2 2
At 31 December 660 835 1,495 503 721 1,224
Net book value at 31 December 117 137 254 274 203 477
The Corparation holds no property, plant and equipment
QOther intangible assets
Group
Computer Computer
software software
2009 2008
B o £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 668 600
Additions at cost 105 68
At 31 December 773 668
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 Janvary 585 554
Charge 61 31
At 31 December 646 585
Net book value at 31 December 127 83
The Corporation holds no other ntangible assets
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13 Investments

Investments hkeld at fair value through profit or loss

o 2009 2008
Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unhsted Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Group
Opening cost at 1 lanuary 301,217 205 301,422 294,493 218 294,711
{Losses)/gains at 1 January {12,856) - (12,8586) 128,783 - 128,783
Opening far value at ! January 288,361 205 288,566 423,276 218 423,494
Purchases at cost 82,176 60 82,236 81,112 28 81,140
Cost of acqusition (206) - {206} (319) - (319)
Sales - proceeds {71,475) - {71,475) (74,195) (13) (74,208)
- reahsed (losses)/gains on sales {49) - {49) 126 - 126
Gains/llosses) in the income statement 73,994 - 73,994 {141,639) (28} (141,667)
Closing fair value at 31 December 372,801 265 373,066 288,361 205 288,566
Closing cost at 31 December 311,663 265 311,928 301,217 205 301,422
Galns/lio_s_s_es) o 61,138 - 61,138 {12,856) - {12,856)
Closing fair value at 31 December 372,801 265 373,066 288,361 205 288,566
o e 290? - 2008
Listed Unhisted Total Usted Uniisted Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Corporation
Opening cost at 1 January 306,314 - 306,314 299,590 - 299,590
{Lossesy/gans at 1 January {17,953) - {17,953) 123,686 - 123,686
Opening fair value at 1 January 288,361 - 288,361 423,276 - 423,276
Purchases at cost 82,176 - 8176 81,112 - 8Ll12
Cost of acquisition (206) - {206) (319} - {319)
Sales - proceeds {71,475) - {71,475) 74,195) - (74,19%)
- realised (losses)/gains on sales (49) - {49} 126 - 126
Gas/llosses) in the income statement 73,994 - 73,994 (141,639} - {141,639)
Closing fair value at 31 December 372,801 - 372,801 288,361 - 288,361
Closing cost at 31 December 316,761 - 316,761 306,314 - 306,314
Gains/llosses) 56,040 - 56,040 (17,853) - (17,953)
Closing fair value at 31 December 372,801 - 372,801 288,361 - 288,361

Listed investments are all traded on active markets and as defined by IFRS 7 are Level 1 financial instruments As such they are

valued at unadjusted quoted bid prices

Included i unhisted ivestments i the group statement of financial posttion are subsidiary undertakings which are held in connection
with the group's independent fiductary services business and in which the group holds all voting nghts These undertakings have not
been included in the group consolidation as the Corporation’s ability to exercise its nghts as a parent company over the assets and
management of these undertakings 1s severly restricted by contractual agreements with other parties The group received fees of

£225,464 {2008 £192,685) in respect of these undertakings

There were no amounts outstanding with these undertalungs at the year end (2008 i)
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Notes to the accounts

continued

Investments continued
Investments 1n subsidiary undertakings — Corporation

2009 2008
£000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 58 58
At 31 December 58 58

The Corporation, or a subsidiary thereof, owns all the 1ssued share capital of the following principal subsidiaries All subsidianes are
registered i England and Wales unless otherwase stated All of the subsidianes hsted below are included in the consolatea financial
statements Other than Law Debenture Finance p | ¢, a group financing company, all subsichanes are engaged n the prowvision of
independent fiduciary services

1 Delaware Corporate Services Inc (incorporated in Delaware)
tLDC Trust Management Limited
T Law Debenture Corporate Serwices Limited
1 Law Debenture Corporate Services Inc (incorporated in New York)
Law Debenture Finance p I c
T Law Debenture Guarantee Limited
t Law Debenture Holding Inc (incorporated in New York)
t Law Debenture Intermedsary Corporation p I ¢
t Law Debenture Trust {Asia) Limited {incorporated n Hong Kong)
¥ Law Debenture Trust Corporation of New York (incorporated m New York)
T Law Debenture Trustees Limited
¥ Law Debenture Asset Backed Solutions Limited
T The Law Debenture Corporation {Deutschland) Limited
The Law Debenture Corporahion (H K ) bimited {(incorporated in Hong Kong)
T The Law Debenture Pension Trust Corporation plc
t The Law Debenture Trust Corparation pl ¢
t The Law Debenture Trust Corporatien {Cayman) Limited (ncorporated i the Cayman Islands)
t The Law Debenture Trust Corporation {Channel Islands} Limited (incorporated in Jersey)
1 Safecall Limited
1 Shares held by a subsidiary

All the above mentioned subsidiaries operate in the United Kingdorn with the exception of those subsidianies incorporated overseas
which operate in their country of incorporation

Trade and other recewvables

An allowance has been made duning the year for the estmated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of services of £280,000 (2008
£323,000) This allowance has been determined by reference to past experience
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Cash and cash equivalents

These comprise cash held at bank by the group, short term bank deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less and
money market funds with immediate access The carrying amount of these assets approximates to their fair value

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables principally compnise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The average credit
period taken for trade purchases s 30 days

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to therr fair value

Called up share capital

2009 2008
e £000 £000
Authorised share capital
133,000,000 ordinary shares 6,650 6,650
Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid share capital
Value
As at 1 January 5,902 5,888
Issued_m_ year 1 14
As at 31 December 5,903 5,802
Shares
As at 1 January 118,034,023 117,752,213
Issued n year 33,365 281,810
As at 31 December 118,067,388 118,034,023

During the year to 31 December 2009, 33,365 shares were allotted under the SAYE Scheme for a total consideration of £68,005
which in¢cludes a premium of £66,336

During the year, 211,744 options were granted under the Corporation’s SAYE scheme At 31 December 2009, options under the
SAYE Scheme and Executive Share Option Scheme exercisable from 2010 to 2014 at prices ranging from 174 4p to 349 8p per
share were outstanding in respect of 474,854 ordinary shares (2008 493,584 ordinary shares) During 2009 90,568 options lapsed
or were cancelled (2008 115,230) and 139,906 were exercised

Further details of ophons outstanding are given in the directors’ report on page 21

Own shares held

2009 2008
£000 £000
Own shares held - cost 2,040 2,137

The own shares held represent the cost of 786,604 (2008 772,080} ordinary shares of 5p each in the Corporation, acquired by the
ESOT in the open market The shares have been acquired to meet the requirements of the Executive Share Option Scheme and the
Deferred Share Bonus Plan The dwidends relating to the shares have been waived The market value of the shares at 31 December
2009 was £2,237,888
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continued

Cap#al reserves

2009 2008
Unrealised Unreahsed
appreciation/ Realised appreciztion/ Realised
{depreciation) reserves Total  {depreciation} reserves Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Group
At 1 January {15,875) 242,638 226,763 126,023 241,977 368,000
Transfer on disposal of investments 18,115 {18,115) - (28,601) 28,601 -
Net gans on mnvestments 55,879 18,066 73,945 {113,038) (27,940) (140,978}
Cost of acquisttion (206) - {206} (319} - (319;
Foreign exchange (77) - (77) 396 - 396
Transfers to revenue {89) - (89) {336} - (336)
At 31 December 57,747 242,589 300,336 {15,875} 242,638 226,763
2009 2008
Unrealised Unrealised
appreciation/ Realised appreciation/ Realised
{depreciation) reserves Total  (depreciation) reserves Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 X000 £000
Corporation
At 1 January (20,611) 307,592 286,981 121,287 306,931 428,218
Transfer on disposal of investments 18,115 {18,115} - (28,601} 28,601 -
Net gains on investments 55,879 18,066 73,945 (113,038} (27,940) (140,978}
Cost of acquisition {206) - {206) (319} - (319)
Foreign exchange (77} - (77} 396 - 396
Transfers to revenue (89) - {89) (336} - {336)
At 31 December 53,011 307,543 360,554 (20,611) 307,592 286,981

fFinancial instruments

The group's investment objective 15 to achieve long term capital growth through mvesting n a diverse portfolio of investments spread
both geographically and by sector In pursut of this objective, the group has the power to deploy the following financial instruments

* Equities and fixed interest secunties

« Cash, short term mvestments and deposits, and working capital ansing from the group's operations

« Debentures, term loans and bank overdrafts to allow the group to raise finance

« Dervative transactions to manage any of the nsks ansing from the use of the above instruments

It remains the group’s policy that no trading in derwatves 15 undertaken Information in respect of the investment portfolio 1s included

on pages 7 to 13
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1% Fnancial instruments continued
The group and Corporation held the followng categories of financial assets and labiibes at 31 December 2009

Group
2009 2008
£000 £000
Assets
Financial assets held at far value through profit or loss (designated as such upon inhal recognition)
Equity investments 357,134 286,734
Debt mvestments 15,932 1,832
373,066 288,566
Loans and recevables
Trade and other recewvables 3,135 3,461
Cash and cash equivalents 18,688 31,590
21,823 35,051
Total financial assets 394,889 323,617
Liabilities
Financral liabifities measured at amortised cost
Loans and payables
Trade and other payables 7,893 8,491
Short term borrowings 76 85
7,969 8,576
Long term borrowings 39,338 39,311
Total financial habilities 47,307 47,887
Corporation
2009 2008
£000 £000
Assets
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss {designated as such upon initial recogmiion)
Equity investments 356,869 286,529
Debt investments 15,832 1,832
372,801 288,361
Loans and recevables
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 60,000 60,000
Trade and other recevables 155 239
Cash and cash equivalents 7,238 20,297
67,393 80,536
Total financial assets 440,194 368,897
Liabiklities
Financial habikbies measured at amortised cost
Loans and payables
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 49,562 51,042
Trade and other payables 135 179
Total financial habilrties 49,697 51,221
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56 Notes to the accounts

continued

19 Financial instruments continued
The prncipal nsks facing the group i respect of its financial instruments remain unchanged from 2008 and are

*market price risk, ansing from uncertainty in the future value of financial nstruments The board maintains policy gudelines
whereby rnisk 1s spread over a range of investments, the number of holdings normally being between 70 and 150 In addition, the
stock selections and transachons are actively monitored throughout the year by the investment manager, who reports to the
board on a regular basis to review past performance and develop future strategy The mvestment portfolio 1s exposed to market
price fluctuation If the valuation at 31 December 2009 fell or rose by 10%, the smpact on the group’s total profit or loss for the
year would have been £37 3 millon (2008 £28 9 million) Corresponding 10% changes in the valuation of the investment portfolio
on the Corporation's total profit or loss for the year would have been the same

e foreign currency nisk, arising from movements in currency rates apphcable to the group's investment in equibes and fixed
Interest securities and the net assets of the group's overseas subsidianes denorminated 1n currencies other than sterling The
group's financial assets denominated in currencies other than sterling were

e 2009 2008
Net monet;r;'vﬁmfal c:rrent;y T —ruiet mo_net—a—r): i T;Jta_l a.l—;e_ll;;'
investments assets exposure Investments assets exposure
£m £m &m im im im
Group

US Dollar 170 35 205 102 39 141
Canad:an Daollar 14 - 14 - - -
Euro 288 07 295 316 20 336
Danish Krone o8 - 08 10 - 190
Swedish Krona 07 - 07 - - -
Swiss Franc 128 - 128 95 - 95
Hong Kong Dollar - 04 o4 - 05 05
Japanese Yen 59 - 59 62 - 62
67 4 46 720 585 64 64 9
2009 2008
fNet monetary Total currency Net monetary  Total currency
Investments assots exposure Investments assets exposure
£m &m £m im £m £m

Corporation
US Dollar 170 - 17 0 102 02 104
Canadian Dollar 14 - 14 - - -
Euro 288 05 293 318 20 336
Danish Krone 08 - o8 10 - 10
Swedish Krona 07 - 07 - - -
Swiss Franc 128 - 128 95 - 95
Japanese Yen 59 - 59 62 - 62
67 4 0.5 679 585 22 607

The holdings w the Henderson Japan Capital Growth, Henderson Pacific Capital Growth, Baille Gifford Pacific and First Asia Pacific,
QEICs and Scottish Oriental Smaller Company Trust are denommated in sterling but have underlying assets in foreign currencies
equivalent to £39 1 millan (2008 £29 6 milkon) Investments made in the UK and overseas have underlyng assets and income
streams in foreign currencies wiuch cannot be determined and this has not been included in the sensitmty analysis If the value of all
other currencies at 31 December 2009 rose or fell by 10% aganst sterling, the impact on the group's total profit or loss for the
year would have been £10 7 milion (2008 £8 8 million} Corresponding 10% changes i currency values on the Corporation's total
profit or loss for the year would have been the same The calculations are based on the investrent portiolio at the respective year
end dates and are not representative of the year as a whole
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19 Financial instruments continued

= hquedity risk, ansing from any difficulty in realising assets or raising funds to meet commitments associated with any of the above
financial instruments To minimise this nsk, the board's policy guidelines only permit nvestment in eguities and fixed interest
secunties quoted in major financial markets In addition, cash balances and overdraft faciities are maintained commensurate with

Ikely future settlements The matunty of the group's existing borrowings i1s set out in note 20

s Interest rate nisk, ansing from movements in interest rates on borrowing, deposits and short term mvestments The board reviews
the mix of fixed and floating rate exposures and ensures that geanng levels are appropriate to the current and anticipated market
environment The group's interest rate profile at 31 December 2009 was

B Group Corporation

Sterting HK Dollars US Dollars Euro Sterhing US Dollars Euro

£m £m £m £m £m &m &m

Fixed rate assets - - - - - - -

Floating rate assets 148 04 30 g5 6.7 - 05

Fixed rate labilibes™ 393 - - - - - -
Weighted average fixed rate 6125%

*Fixed unbl 2034

The group holds cash and cash equivalents on short term bank deposits and money market funds Interest rates tend to vary with
bank base rates The investment portfolio 1s not directly exposed to interest rate nsk

If interest rates during the year were 1 0% higher the impact on the group’s total profit or loss for the year would have been
£135,000 (2008 £226,000) It s assumed that interest rates are unlikely to fall below the current level

The Corporation holds cash and cash equivalents on short term bank deposits and money market funds Amounts due from
subsidiary undertakings are for a term of five years and carry interest at a fixed rate (see note 13) Amounts owed to subsidiary
undertakings include £40 milion at a fixed rate Interest rates on cash and cash equivalents and amounts due to subsidiary
undertakings at floating rates tend to vary with bank base rates A 1 0% increase in interest rates would have affected the
Carporation's profit or loss for the year by £52,000 {2008 £66,000) The calculations are based on the balances at the respectwe
year end dates and are not representative of the year as a whole

* credit risk, ansing from the falure of another party to perform according to the terms of therr contract The group minimises credit
nisk through policies which restrict deposits to highly rated finencial institutions and restrict the maximum exposure to any indwidual
financial institution The group's maximurm exposure to credit risk ansing from financial assets 15 £21 8 milion (2008 £35 1 million)
The Corporation's maximum exposure to credit nisk ansing from financial assets 1s £67 4 million (2008 £80 5 rmultion)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recevables not iImpaired but past due by the following

Group Corporation

2009 2008 2009 2008

£000 £000 £000 £099

Between 31 and 60 days 797 681 25 -
Between 61 and 90 days 307 702 3 134
More than 91 days 597 337 97 99
Total 1,701 1,720 125 233
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Notes to the accounts

continued

Financial instruments continued
Trade and other payables

Group _ Corporation

2009 2008 2009 2008

£000 £000 £000 000

Due in tess than one month 7,341 7,786 135 179
Due in more than one month 552 705 - -
7.893 8,491 135 179

Fair value
The directors are of the opumon thal tne fair value of tinancial assets and habilibes of the group are not matenally different to their
carrying values

Bank overdrafts and loans
2009 2008
% %

The weighted average interest rates were as follows
Bank overdrafts 164 567

The directors eshmate the farr value of the group’s borrowings as follows and have been classified by the earliest date on which
repayment can be required

Group Corporation
2009 2008 2009 2008
o o o £000 £000 £000 £00¢
Borrowings are repayable as follows
In one year or less 76 85 - -
In more than five years
Secured
6 125% guaranteed secured bonds 2034 39,338 39,311 - -

The sterling bank overdrafts of £76,000 (2008 £85,000) have been incurred in connection with the independent fiduciary services
business

The 6 125% bonds were 1ssued by Law Debenture Finance p I ¢ and guaranteed by the Corporation The £40 millien nominal
tranche, which produced proceeds of £39 1 milion, 1s constituted by Trust Deed dated 12 Qctober 1999 and the Corporation’s
guarantee 1s secured by a floating charge on the undertaking and assets of the Corporation The stock 1s redeemable at its nominal
amount on 12 October 2034 Interest 1s payable sernrannually in equal mstalments on 12 April and 12 October in each year

Analysis of borrowings by currency

2009 2008

Sterling Tota! Sterling Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Bank overdrafts 76 76 85 85
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Contingent habilites

In order to facitate the actvties of one of its US subsidiaries, a UK subsidiary of the Corporation has prowded a guarantee in the
amount of USS50 million

The group 15 also from time to time party to legal proceedings and claims, which arise in the ordinary course of the ndependent
fiduciary services busness The directors do not believe that the outcome of any of the above proceedings and clams, either
indwmdually or in aggregate, will have a material adverse effect upon the group’s financial position

The Corporation has prowded a guarantee to a subsidiary undertaking i respect of the ongaing habilities of the group defined benefit
pension scheme see note 23

Lease commitments

At the year end date, the group had autstanding commutments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable cperating
leases, which fall due as follows

2009 2008
£000 £000
Less than one year 1,246 1,178
Two to five years 5,967 5,567
More than five years 4,424 5,504

11,637 12,249

Lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for its office properties The lease for the man property was negobated for a
term of 16 years and rentals are fixed for an average of five years

Pension commutments
The group operates a funded, defined benefit pension plan (The Law Debenture Pensicn Plan’) with pension benefits related to final
pensionabte pay The assets of the plan are held in a separate trustee administered fund

Actuarial gams and losses are recogrised in full n the period in which they occur The liability recognised in the statement of financial
posibon represents the present value of the defined benefit obhgation, as reduced by the fair value of plan assets The cost of
prowiding benefits 15 determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method

At 31 December 2009, the expected rate of return on assets 1s 6 5% pa (2008 6 2% pa) This rate 15 derved by taking the weighted
average of the long term expected rate of return on each of the asset classes that the plan was mvested in at 31 December 2009

The trennial actuanial valuation at 31 December 2008 was completed dunng 2003 and the estimated employer and employee
contributions expected to be pad to the plan during 2010 15 X1 O rmllion
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Notes to the accounts

continued

Pension commitments conbinued

The major assumptions in the 31 December 2009 disclosure under 1AS19 are shown below and are apphed to membership data
supplied at that date This shows the net pension assets and lrabilittes

2009 2008
% %
Principal actuarial assumptions
Retail Price Inflabion 35 29
Discount rate 55 52
5% LPI Penson incraases in payment 34 27
General salary increases 50 44
Expected return on assets B 65 ) E 2
Years Years
Life expectancy of male aged 65 in 2009 223 222
Life expectancy of male aged 65 in 2028 242 241
2009 2008
£000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obligation 30,717 29,244
Fair value of plan assets (28,789) {23,766)
Deficat in statement of financial posthon 1,928 5,478
2009 2008
S R " £000
The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows
Employer's part of current service cost 400 601
Interest cost 1,517 1,539
Expected return on plan assets (1,486} (1,731
Gain on curtariments {694) -
Tatal (gain)/expense recognised in profit or loss {263) 409

The gain on curtalments represents the reduchon in the defined benefit obligation as a resuit of the benefit change made on 1 Apnl
2009

2009 2008
Allocation % £000 Allocation % o EO_O(_)

The current allocation of plan assets is as follows
Equiies 66 19,019 63 14,930
Bonds 9 2,531 9 2,118
Gilts 22 6,298 24 5,794
Pensioner annuities 3 878 4 920
Other - 63 - 4
Total 100 28,789 100 23,766
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23 Penston commitments continued

2009 2008
£000 £000
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
At 1 January 29,244 26,968
Employer's part of current service cost 400 601
Interest cost 1517 1,539
Contributions by plan parhicipants 90 153
Actuanal losses 804 681
Benefits paid {644) {698}
Curtailmenls (694} -
At 31 December 30,717 29,244
2009 2008
£000 £000
Reconcihation of fair value of plan assets
At 1 January 23,766 26,711
Expected return on plan assets 1,486 1,731
Actuanal gains/losses) 3,083 (5,351}
Contributions by the employer 1,008 1,220
Contributions by plan participants S0 153
Benefits paid {644) (698)
At 31 December 28,789 23,766
2009 2008 2006 2005
L o 2_990 __£000 £000 1000
Principal actuarial assumptions
Present value of defined benefit obligation 30,717 29,244 25,440 27,371
Fair value of plan assets {28,789) (23,766) _(_24_,3_67) (?_9.9@_8)
Deficit 1,928 5,478 1,073 6,443
Expenence adjustments on plan assets
Amount of gan/loss) 3,083 (5,351) 816 1,724
Percentage of plan assets 11% (23%) 3% 8%
Experience adjustments on plan habilittes
Amount of gain 691 7 39 797
Percentage of the present value of the pfan habilihes 2% - - 3%
Expense to be recognised immedately outstde profrt or foss
Actuanial gains/{losses) 2,279 (6,032} 3,119 ) _29
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Notes to the accounts

continued

Share based payments

The group operates a share option scheme for the executive director and senior members of staff Details of which are included i
paragraph 5 of the remuneration report on page 30

Details of the share optons outstanding were

2009 2008

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of price Number of prce

share options Pence share options Pence

Qutstanding at 1 January 297,558 191 66 492,434 195 81

Exercised dunng the year {106,541) 18219 (109,876} 206 83

Lapsed dunng the year - - {85,000) 21210

Outstanding at 31 December 191,017 197 04 297,558 191 66

Exercisable at 31 December 191,017 197 04 297,558 19] 66

2009 2008

— e Pence  Pence

Wesghted average share price at date of exercise 27099 331 28
Detais of the number of option holders 15 given on page 21 of the directors’ report

Inputs into the Black-Schotes model are as follows

2009 2008

Expected volatility 20% 20%

Interest rate 5% 5%

Expected life 3 years 3 years

Expected volatifty was determined by using the Barra number for annuat volatility of the group’s share pnce The expected hfe used
in the model has been adjusted based on the management’s best estimate for the effects of non-transterabilly, exercise restrictions
and behawvioural considerations

The group recognised total expenses of £nil 2008 £6,000) in respect of share based payment transactions

During the year the Deferred Share Benus Plan made awards n respect of 286,600 with a market value of £560,000, which will be
released to executves in March 2012 The shares are held in the ESOT The cost of the shares 15 being charged to the income
statement over the vesting period

Related party transactions

Group
Transactions between the Corporation and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been ehminated on consoldation

Corporation

The gelated party transactions between the Corporation and s wholly owned subsidiary undertakings are summarised as follows
2009 2008
£000 £000

Dradends from subsidianes 1,500 -

Interest on intercompany balances charged by subsidiaries 2,661 3,259

Management charges from subsidiaries 400 400

Interest on intercompany balances charged to subsidianes 5,073 5,400
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Investment trust status

The Corporation carnes on business as an
investment trust company as defined in secton
842(1) of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act
1988 The directors will endeavour to conduct its
affars so as to enable it to maintan HM Revenue &
Customs approval of the Carporation’s status in this
respect So far as the directors are aware, the
close company provisions of the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 do not apply to the
Corporation

Caprtal gamns tax

For shareholders who have purchased their shares
through a share savings scheme on a monthly basis
and who wish to apply HM Revenue & Customs’
ophional basis of valuing holdings as if they had all
been purchased in July, gudance notes have been
prepared by the AIC and are available from the
company secretary on request

Company share mformation

Information about the Corporation can be found on
its web site http //www lawdeb com The market
price of its ordinary shares 1s published in the
Financial Times, The Times, The Datly Telegraph,
The Guardian, The Independent, and the Daily Mail

Individual savings account ('ISA’}

For investors seeling a tax efficient method of
investing in the shares of the Corporation The Plan
Manager 1s National Westminster Bank Plc and can
be contacted at

Nationa! Westminster Bank Plc,
FREEPOQST,

Princess House,

27 Bush Lane,

London EC4R DAA

Telephone — 0845 601 5600
References to services prowided by members of the
Royal Bank of Scotland Group have been approved

by National Westminster Bank Plc, which 1s
authonsed and regulated by the FSA

www lawdeb com

Shareholder information

Registrars

Qur registrars, Computershare Investor Services plc,
operate a dedicated telephone service for Law
Debenture shareholders — 0870 707 1129

Shareholders can use this number to access holding
balances, dvidend payment details, share pnce
data, or to request that a form be sent to therr
registered address

Share dealing

Computershare Investor Serwices plc offers
shareholders a share dealing service wia the mternet
or by telephone, detalls of which are as follows

Internet - www computershare com/dealing/uk
Telephone - 0870 703 0084

Commussion for the internet service 15 0 5% with a
mimimum charge of £15 and 1% for the telephone
service with a minemum charge of £25

The service 15 avallable only to those shareholders
who hold ther shares on the register and 1s not
avallable to those who hold therr shares via a
nominee

Shareholders using the internet service will need
their Shareholder Reference Number (SRN) and post
code to complete therr trade The SRN can be
found printed on your proxy card

The share dealing service 1s controlled and
operated by Computershare Investor Services plc
and the Corporation 1s not responsible or hable for
anyttung anising from a shareholder's decision to
use the service The Corporation 1s not acting as
an introducer for the share dealing service and
receves no financial benefit, either from making
shareholders aware of the serace or from any
share deals conducted by shareholders who use
the service
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Financial calendar

Dividend and mterest payments

Ordinary shares
Interim announced July

Final announced February

6 125% guaranteed
secured notes

Group results
First quarter
mtenm statement

Half year results

Third quarter
intenm statement

Full year results
Report and accounts

Annual general meeting

Factsheets

The Law Debenture Corporaton plc

Paid September
Paid April

Paid Apnil and Qctober

Anngunced i Apri

Announced in July

Announced in October
Announced in February
Published in March

Held in London in
March/April

Published manthty on
the Corporation’s
website

Payment methods for dividends

Dividends and interest can be paid to shareholders
by means of BACS {Bankers Automated Clearing
System) Mandate forms for this purpose are
availlable on request from the Corporation’s
Registrars
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Notice of annual general meeting 65

Notice of annual general meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 120th annual general meeting of the Corporation will be held on
31 March 2010 at 11 00am at the Brewers Hall, Aldermanbury Square, London EC2V 7HR for the
following purposes

Ordinary business

1 To recewe the report of the directors and the audited accounts for the year ended
31 December 2009

2 Yo recewe and approve the directors’ remuneration report for the year ended 31 December 2009

w

To declare a final dividend of 8 Op per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2009
To re-elect Mr D C P McDougall as a director

To re-elect Mr A C Cates as a director

To re-elect Mrs C J Banszky as a director

To re-elect Professor J A Kay as a director

To re-elect Mr C Smith as a director

w O N o

To re-appoint BDO LLP as auditors of the Corporation to hold office until the conclusion of the
next general meeting at which accounts are laid and to authorise the directors to determine
their remuneration

Special business

To consider and, If thought fit, to pass the following resolutions which will be proposed as special
resolutions

10 General authonty to buy back shares

THAT the Corporation be and 1s generally and uncondibonally authonsed in accordance with sections 693

and 701 of the Companies Act 2006 (the 'Act’) to make market purchases {within the meaning of section

693(4) of the Act) of any of its 1ssued ordinary shares of 5p each in the capital of the Corporation, in such

manner and upon such terms as the directors of the Corporation may from time to ume determine,

PROVIDED ALWAYS THAT

(a) the maximum number hereby authonsed to be purchased shall be imited to 17,698,301 shares, or if
less, that number of shares which s equal to 14 99% of the Corporation’s 1ssued share capital as at
the date of the passing of this resolution,

(b} the mimmum price which may be paid for a share shall be 5p,

{c) the maxsmum price which may be paid for a share shall be an amount equal to 105% of the average
of the middle market quotatians (as denved from the London Steck Exchange Daily Official List} for
the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the day on which the share is purchased,

{d) unless previously revoked, renewed or varied, the authority hereby conferred shall expire on the date
of the Corporation’s next annual general meeting provided that a contract of purchase may be made
before such expiry which wil or may be executed wholly or partly thereafter, and a purchase of
Shares may be made n pursuance of any such contract
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66 Notice of annual general meeting

continued

11 General authonty to allot shares

THAT

(a) the directors be generally and unconditionally authonsed pursuant to and 1n accordance with section
551 of the Companies Act 2006 to exercise for the penod ending on the date of the Corporation’s
next annual general meeting, all the powers of the Corporation to aflot shares in the Corporation or to
grant rights to subscribe for or to convert any security into shares in the Corporation up to an
aggregate nominal amount (within the meaning of sections 551(3} and (6} of the saud Act) of
£295,168,

{b} the Corporation may during such period make offers or agreements which woutd or might require the
mahing of allutments of equity securities or relevant securibies as the case may be after the expiry of

such period

12 Disapplication of statutory pre-emption rights

THAT

(a) In exercise of the authority gwen to the directors by resolution 11 above, the directors be empowered
pursuant to section 570 of the Companies Act 2006 to allot shares or grant nights to subscnbe for or
to convert any security into shares in the Corporation for the period ending on the date of the
Corporation's next annual general meeting whally for cash generally up to an aggregate nommnal
amount of £295,168 as if section 561 of the said Act did not apply to such allotment, prowded
always that no more than 7 5% of the issued share capital shall be issued on a non pre-emptive basis
withun any three year penod,

{b) the Corporation may dunng such period make offers or agreements which would or might reguire the
malng of allotments of equity securities or relevant secunbies as the case may be after the expiry of

such period

-

13 Amendment to the Corporation’s articles of association
THAT
{a} the articles of association of the Corporation be amended by deleting all of the prowisions of the
Corporation’s memorandum of associabion which, by wirtue of section 28 of the Compames Act 2006
are to be treated as part of the Corporaton’s articles of association,

{b) the draft new articles of association of the Corporation 1n the form produced to the meeting and
niballed by the Chairman for the purposes of identification be adopted as the articles of asseciation of
the Corporation i substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the existing articles of association

14 Authonty to convene a general meeting - notice
THAT a general meeting of the Corporation, other than an annual general meeting, may be called on not

less than 14 clear days’ notice

By order of the board
Registered office

Law Pebenture Corporate Services Limited Fifth Floor
Secretary 100 Wood Street
22 February 2010 London EC2V 7EX

Registered No 30397
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Notes to the notice of annual general meeting

A member who holds ordinary shares on the register of members and s entitled to attend and vote at this meeting 15 enirtled to appomt one or more proxes to
attend and on a poll, to vote i his or her place {or in the case of a corporation, to appount one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf
all of its pawers as a member} A prowy reed nat be a member of the Corporation Proxy nghts do not apply to nominated persons although the nominated person
may have a nght under an agreement with the registered member to appomt a proxy In addibon to mstructing a proxy to vote for or against a resolution the form
enables you to instruct a ‘vote withheld of you prefer A vote withheld 15 not a vete in law and will not be counted in the calculation of votes i may be used, for
example, to convey a message of dissatisfaction on a particular 1ssue, where the strength of feeling ts not so great as to cppose the resolution, but supporting t 15
not appropnate edher

i vou hold your shares on the register of members (as opposed to holding them i a nominee), you will find encfosed a form of proxy for use at the meeting
To be vahd forms of proxy must be lodged electronically by accessing www eproxyappaintment com, or by post at the office of the Corporaton’s registrar
Computershare Investor Services plc The Pavihons, Bridgwater Road Bristol BS99 6ZY If you intend to lodge your proxy vote electronically you will need your
Shareholder Reference Number, PiN and Contrel Number, all of wiich are printed on your proxy card if you are a CREST member, you can regrster your vote
electronically by using the service provided by Euroclear Proxies must be recerved not less than 48 hours before the tme apposted for the holding of the
meetng This 1§ alkso the voung record date by which @ person must be enterea on the register in order to have a nght 1o attend and vote at the meeting
Lodgement of a form of proxy will not prevent a member from attending and votmg in person

The register of directors’ interests wall be available for inspection at the registered office of the Corperation duning normal business hours and at the annual general
meeting No director has a service contract with the Corporation of more than gne year's duration

Subject to the dmdend on the ordinary shares now recommended beng approved at the annual general meeting dandends will be pad on 1 Aprl 2010 to
shareholders on the register on the record date on 5 March 2010

Resolution 2 15 to recenve and approve the directors’ remunerabon report for the year ended 31 December 2009 The remuneration report is set out at pages 28
to 33 of the annual report of the Corporation

Resolution 4 Mr D CP McDougal offers himself for re-election The board supports his re-election because he leads the board with skidl and considerable
success He 1s highly regarded in the smvestment trust sector and makes a full contrbution to the board, with parhcular expertise in overseeing Investment
strategy His biography 1s included on page 5 of the annual report

Resolution 5 Mr A C Cates offers himself for re-election The board supports his reelection because Mr Cates continues to perform well as senior non-executive
director as evidenced m his appraisal by the Chairman His extensive knowledge of corporate trusts 1s valued and he is an informed and expert chaimman of the
principat hoiding company for the independent fiduciary seraces business His biography 1s included on page 5 of the annual report

Resolution & Mrs C J Banszky offers herself for re-election The board supports her re-election She comtoues to be a very effectwe managing director,
considerably improving profitability of the mdependent fiduciary serices business and enhancing shareholder vatue Her biography 1s included on page 5 of the
annual report

Resolution 7 Professor J A Kay offers hmself for re-efecion The board supports his re-election He prowdes a valuable msight into economic events and trends
His biography 1s inciuded on page 5 of the annual report

Resolution 8 15 to re efect Mr C Smith The board suppotts his re-efecbon He brings a wealth of corporate finance expenence to the board alang with a tharough
knowledge of the investment trust sector and regulatory matters and 1s an effectve audit committee charman His biography 1s ncluded on page 5 of the annual
report

Resolution 9 1s to re apponl BDO LLP as the Corporation’s audiors BDO LLP were apponted on 31 October 2008

Special resclution 10 renews the authorty given to dectors at the last annual general meeting o purchase ordmary shares mn the market for cancellaon Such
purchases at appropriate times and prices could be a sutable method of enhancing sharehalder value and would be applied within guidelines set from e to Ume
by the board it should be noted that no such purchases would be undertaken i shares were trading at a premum to net assetvalue The authorty being scught 1s
the same as the Corporation has tradrtronally sought each year, but 1s proposed now in accordance with the dratting prowided for in the Compames Act 2006

Special resolution 11 renews the authordy given o directors at the last annual general meeting to allot unissued capital not exceeding 5,903 369 shares, beng
5% of the 1ssued share capital This authority 1s sought prncipally to allow the directors to satisfy demand for shares from partcipants in the Indwidual Savings
Account, and would be exercised only at imes when it would be advantageous to the Corporation’s shareholders to do so Shares would not be issued under this
authority at a price lower than net asset value at the time of the issue f approved, the authority will continue to operate untl the next annual general meeting The
authority being sought 15 the same as the Corporation has tradtionally scught each year, but 1 proposed now In accordance with the drafting provided for in the
Compames Act 2006

$pecial resolution 12 15 proposed because the directors consider that in order to allot shares m the crcumstances described i resolution 11 ¢ 15 i the best
interests of the Corporation and its shareholders to allot a maximum of 5,903 369 shares other than on a preemptive basis The board would not, however, 1ssue
more than 7 5% of the 1ssued share capital on a nonpre emptyve basis within any three year penod The authorty beng sought 1s the same as the Corporation has
tradibonally sought each year, but 1s proposed now in accordance with the dratting provided for m the Companes Act 2006

Resolutions 13 and 14 - adoption of naw articles of association and authority to convene a general maeting - explanatory notes

Special resolution 1315 proposed in order to change the Corporation's arvcles of association so that they are fully compliant with the Companes Act 2006 (the
Act) and the Companies {Shareholders’ Rights) Regulations 2009 (‘the Regulations”) Sharehokders will recall that the bulk of amendments necessary to make the
arbcles of association consistent with the Act were made at the AGM n 2008 Since then, however, the final prowstons of the Act have been implemented (in
October 2009 and the Regulations have been introduced The Corporation proposes a single resoluton to adopt the new artictes n thewr entrety rather than
proposing many separate resolutions to deal with each change Indnacually
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68 Notes to the notice of annual general meeting

continued

16 The amendments that are proposed to be made to the existing articles are as follows

{a) The Corporation's objects - the provisions regulating the operations of the Corporation are curcently set out n the Corporation’s memorandum and articles
of associaon The Corporation’s memorandum contans, among other things the object clause whuch sets out the scope of the actmities the Corporation 15
authonsed to undertake This 1s drafted to give a wide scope The Act significantly reduces the constitubional signrficance of a company's memaorandum It
provides that a memorandum will record only the rames of subscnbers and the number of shares each subscriber has agieed to take n the company Under
the Act the objects clause and all other prowisions which are contaned n a company’s memorandum, for exsting companies at 1 October 2009, are deemed
to be contanad i the company’s artrcles of association but the company ¢an remove these prowisions by special resolubion Further, the Act states that unless
a company's articles prowde otherwsse, a company’s objects are unrestricted This abohshes the need for companies 1o have objects clauses For this reason,
the Corporation 1s proposing to remove its objects clause together with afl other provisions of rts memorandurm which, by virtue of the Act are treated as
farming part of the Corporation's articles of association as of 1 October 2009 Resolution 13 confirms the removal of these provisions for the Corporation As
the effect of this resohstion will be to remove the statement currently i the memorandum of association regarding mied hability, pensions and benefits of
officers and employees, the new articles contain express statements regarding these matters

Authorised share capital and unissued shares - the Act abolishes the requirement for a company to have an authonised share capral ang the new articles
reflect this Directors will stll be liemited 23 to the number of shares they can allot at any tme because allgtment authonty continues to be required under the
Act, except in respect of employee share schemes Articles relating 1o increase in authorised share capital, consohidabon sub-dmsian and canceflation of share
capital and reduction of share capital have also been removed since these are enabling prowisions, no longer reguired under the Act Shareholder autharity wall
still need to be cbtaned annually to do any of these things

[

{c) Vacation of office by directors - the new articles add a new arcumstance i which a director must vacate office, taken from the recently mtroduced moded
articles for public companies A director will now need to vacate office # a registered medical practiioner treating that director has given a wrnitten opinion to
the company stahing that the person has become physically or mentally incapable of acting as a director and may reman so for more than three months

{d) Voting by proxies on a show of hands - the Regulations have amended the Act so that ft now prowdes that each proxy appointed by a member has onge
vote on a show of hands However if the proxy 1s appomted by more than one member the proxy may have one vote for and one vote agamst if the proxy has
beer instructed by one or mare members to vote for the resolutton ang by one ar more members to vote against the resolution The new articles have been
amended to reflect this

Voting by corporate rapresentatives — the Regulations have amended the Act to enable multiple representatives apponted by the same corporate member
to attend and vole at meetmgs and the new articles reflect this

fe

(i Chairman's casting vote - the new articles remove the proviston gving the chawman 3 casting vote i the event of an equality of votes at a general meetng
as this 1s no longer permeted under the Act

(g} Notice of genaral meetings - the Regulations amend the Act to require a company to give 21 clear days’ notice of general meetings - notwithstanding what
1t says in the company’s articles - unless the company offers shareholders an electronic voting facilty and a special resolution has been passed by
shareholders authorising a shorter notice persod of 14 days If resolution 13 15 passed, the Corporation will seek such authorty under resolubon 14, which wit
be proposed annually

{h Adjournments for lack of quorum - under the Act, as amended by the Regulations, general meetings adiourned for Tack of quorum must be held at least 10

clear days after the onginal meeting The new articles have been changed to reflect this

{} Voting record data — under the Act, as amended by the Regulations, the Corporation must determine the nght of members to vote at a general meeting by
reference to the register not more than 48 hours before the bme for the holding of the meeting {1 e set avoung record date) This need not take account of
days that are not working days The new articles have been amended to reflect this requirement

{) Consaquentials - certamn cross references have been amended to reflect the removal of the existing articles as described above

17 Resolution 14 implements the new articles requirement that authorty must be sought to convene a general meeting {but not the annual general meeangh on not
lass than 14 clear days notice While the directors have no current mtention to call a general meeting i the year ahead, circumstances might arise whent such a
meetng might become necessary and the directors deem it in the best mterest of shareholders that it be held as quickly as possible Such circumstances might
nchude for example, a decision to make a significant amendment to the ivestment palicy {shareholder approval tor such a change being a regulatory sbpulation)

18 Documents available for inspection

Coples of the followng documents may be nspected at the registered office of the Corporation (Fiith Floar, 100 Wood Street London, EC2V 7EX) durng normal
business hours on any business day until the conclusion of the annual general meetng

+ The current memorandum and artictes of associabion of the Corporation
+ The proposed new articles, and
« The proposed new articles amended In ‘track change’ to show the proposed insertons deletions and amendments

The documents are also available on hne at www lawdeb com under Investor Information within the Investment Trust section of the site

19 Mesting notice requirements ~ the Corporation is required under the Act to make 2 number of addrhonal disclasures in the notes to the natice of meeting
These are as follows The Corporation’s website - www lawdeb comyinvestmenttrust/investorsnformation contams a copy of this notice, winch includes the current
total voing rights, as set out below Shoutd the required aumber of members requisiian the Corporaton to publish any statement about the audit or related
matters that the relevant members propose to raise at the AGM {in accordance with section 527 of the Act), tis would be published at the Corporation’s expense
on the website and forwarded to the audrtor Swniarly, any shareholder statements, resolutions and matters of business connected with the meeting recenved after
publication of this nobce will be published on the websie subject to comphlance by the submiting party with the Act. At the AGM, the Corporation wil cause to be
answered any question relating to the busmess beng dealt with at the meetng put by a shareholder in attendance

Tota) voting rights and share information

The Corporaton confirms that it has an 1ssued share capital at 22 February 2010 of 118,067,388 ordmary shares with voting nights and no restnctions and no
special nghts with regard 1o control of the Corporation There are no other classes of share capital and none of the Corporation’s 1ssued shares are held in
treasury Therefare the total number of votng nghts m The Law Deberture Corporation p lc s currently 118,067,388

The Law Debenture Corporation pl ¢ www lawdeb com




